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COUNTY OF TULARE
221 South Mooney Blvd., Room 101-E  Visalia, Ca 932914593 e FAX (559) 7302547 JIMMY R. ALLEN

Auditor-Controller
(559) 733-6345

JERRY T. MESSINGER
Assistant Auditor-Controller
(559) 733-6345

December 23, 2004

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
The County of Tulare

Administration Building

Visalia, California 93291-4582

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report for the County of Tulare for the year ended June 30, 2004, is hereby submitted in accordance with Section 25253 of the
Government Code of the State of California. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner
that presents fairly the financial position and changes in financial position of the various funds and component units of the County of Tulare. All disclosures
necessary for an understanding of the County's financial activities have been included. Dollar amounts are expressed in thousands, unless otherwise noted.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial and Statistical. The Introductory section, which is unaudited,
includes this letter of transmittal, an organizational chart, a list of the County of Tulare's principal elected and appointed officials and a reproduction of the
Government Finance Officers Association Cemf icate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The Financial section includes the unqualified opinion

of our i audltors ion and analysis, basic financial statements with accompanying notes, and the supplementary information
isting of the c: g and indivi fund financial statements and schedules. The Statistical section, which is unaudited, includes relevant financial and

demographic information depmlng the County’s historical trends and other significant facts.

This comprehensive annual financial report has been prepared by the Department of the Auditor-C in e with il

principles (GAAP) as set forth in the pr of the A Board (GASB) and the Financial Accounting Standards Board

(FASB) through N 30, 1989. ibility for the y of the data, i ing all di: , rests with the County. To provide a reasonable basis

for making these representations, management of the County of Tulare has established a oomprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to
protect the government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse, and to compile sufficient reliable ir ion for the preparation of the County of Tulare’s financial




statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County of Tulare’s comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.
We believe that the data as presented is accurate in all material respects, that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and
changes in financial position of the County as measured by the financial activity of the various funds, and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain a full understanding of the County's financial affairs have been included.

The financial reporting entity includes all of the funds of the County of Tulare, as well as its component units, including the Tulare County Redevelopment Agency,
the Terra Bella Sewer Maintenance District, the Tulare County Flood Control District, the Tulare County Public Facilities Corporation, the Tulare County Public
Financing Authority, the Tulare County In-Home Supportive Services Public Authority, and the First 5 Tulare County. Component units are legally separate entities
for which the County is financially accountable.

The County provides a full range of services mcludmg police and fire protection; health and sanitation services; social services; construction and maintenance of
highways, streets and i 'es; re ities and cultural events.

GAAP requires that provide introducti overwew and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) This letter of to cc MDG&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
County of Tulare's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the lndependent auditor.

GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE, LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The County of Tulare is a general law county created by the State Legislature in 1852. The County is located in the San Joaquin Valley. The Sierra Nevada
provides its eastern boundary line. The County ranks seventh -among California countles in land area. The City of Visalia is the County seat with a population of
approximately 102,684. The County has a pop of app 396,800 with nearly three million acres under cultivation.

The County is the number one producer of dairy products in the United States, and is the nation’s second highest-ranking county with regard to total agriculture
and livestock production. The climate of the County is such that it produces outstanding citrus crops. Among these crops, oranges are the most prominent, with
large acreage also devoted to lemons. Thousands of acres of grapes are high on the list for cash income. Table grapes grown here are shipped worldwide, while
other grapes are processed for wine making and raisins. The County is also famous for its olives, walnuts, plums, peaches and nectarines, which account for
hundreds of millions of dollars in farm income each year. California produces 95 percent of the nation’s olives, one-half of which are grown and packaged in the
County. The southern San Joaquin Valley has always been famous for premium long staple cotton, which accounts for more than $62 million of the agricultural
income within the County. The beef industry is also an important component of the County's economy, as are turkey and hog production. The County’s
geographical location presents easy access to markets around the world for all commodities produced.



MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the year. The Board of Supervisors’ commitment to effectively serving the residents of the County of Tulare is demonstrated by the following:

Continued the process of the comprehensive review of the County’s General Plan.

Telecc icati impi 1t projects were completed.
New budget system was further enhanced and streamlined the overall budget process.
Continued the restoration of the Visalia Library into a children’s library.

Near completion of the $11 million capital project for energy efficiency improvements to County facilities, which are expected to save approximately $1
million in energy costs annually.

Continued the aggressive program to protect grape crops by ining the glassy-winged

Finished the expansion of the Terminus (Kaweah) dam.

a multi-year capital impr prog
For the Future. The Board of Supervisors' continues to prioritize programs to effectively serve the needs of the residents of the County of Tulare, as
demonstrated by the following:
Continue the process for a comprehensive review of the County's General plan.

Change the County’s Workers’ Compensation program from externally insured to self insured while i
costs.

p i to further reduce

Perform a comprehensive review of the County's benefit package provided to employees in order to identify opportunities for improvement.

Review of all internal services provided by the County in order to i fficiencies and ine if privatization is Y.

\

Vig y pursue grant progl to expand revenue base and increase services.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the County is ible for ishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the County are

3



protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure i data are iled to allow for the preparation of basic financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control igned to provide but not that these objectives
are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation
of costs and benefits requires estil and j of

As a recipient of federal, state and local financial assistance, the County is also ible for maintai an internal control structure that will ensure
and with laws and related to these programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by
management and the internal audit staff of the County.

As part of the County's Single Audit, tests were made of the County's internal control and of its i with I laws and { relating
to federal awards. Although this testing was not sufficient to support an opinion on the County's internal control system or its i with laws and {
related to non-major federal awards, the audit for the year ended June 30, 2004, disclosed no material internal control or material violations of laws

and regulations.

In addition, the County maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective of these controls is to ensure i with legal provisi ied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by the Board of Supervisors. Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital projects
funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The legal level of budgetary control (that is, the level which cannot be exceeded without action by the Board
of Supervisors) is the fund Ievel with the exception of the General Fund in whlch the legal level of control is the department level. The Administrative Officer may
approve of approp { within the same budget unit.

The County utilizes an ing system (. Fil i intai on the County's mainframe computer. The system allows us to restrict
each department's expenditures to the amount of the budgeted appropriation. Changes in budget appropriation must be approved by the Board as a transfer from
Contingency reserve, transfer from another budget unit, or as an appropriation of unanticipated or over realized revenue. Any unencumbered appropriation
balances remaining at the end of the fiscal year automatlcally lapse except by approval of the County Administrative Officer (CAO). The fund balances along with
proj become ilable for appropriation in the fi ing year.

As by the its and included in the financial section of this report, the County continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial
management.

EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN

County employees' retirement is provided by the Tulare County i A iation which was established July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions
of the County Employee Retirement Law of 1937. Substantially all employees are covered by this contributory plan. The independently elected Board consists of
nine people who represent a cross section of County employees, both working and retired. The Retirement Association is not considered a component unit of the
County of Tulare because membership includes entities that are not part of the County.

Contributions are made to the Employees' Reti A iation by both the County and on amounts r by the actuary. Five years of
service is needed for a partial vested interest and ten years of membership and a minimum age of 50 is required for full vesting.



The Board adopted a two-tier retirement plan in 1980 and added a third tier in January 1990 pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 415. Employees covered
under plans Tier 2 and 3 will receive reduced retlrement benefits. With the passage of time, this will represent a significant reduction in cost for the County. A
complete ial report is i from the i

CASH MANAGEMENT

The County investment policy's primary goal is the Safety and preservation of capital. The second goal is the continual maintenance of Liquidity (or always having
the ability to convert sufficient securities to cash to cover the cash flow needs of the County and all its investing agencies, and to meet any contingency needs).
The third goal is Yield (or to earn a reasonable rate of return representative of current market conditions and the present phase of the market cycle, while
remaining in compliance with all State laws and the Treasurer's formal investment policy).

Over 84% of the investments held by the County during the year ended June 30, 2004 are classified in the category of lowest custodial credit risk as defined by the
Governmental Accounting Board. F were held in the County's name either by the counterparty financial institution's trust
department or by a Securities and ge C iSSi gi d brokerage firm. The earned yield (net of treasurer's fees) for the County of Tulare for fiscal
year June 30, 2004 was 2.23%.

Investment Portfolio Composition as of June 30, 2004

LAIF Managed Pool
$39,935
8%

Commercial Paper
$94,932
19%

U.S. Treasury
Obligations $73,051

14%
Repurchase A——
Agreements $21,000
4% Federal Agency|

Obligations
i $229,760

Med '

ledium Term 5%

Corporate Notes
$46,181
9%

Obligations $5,747
%




RISK MANAGEMENT

The County iti from a self-i d p in 1993 to ing with multiple HMO's (Health Maintenance Organizations) to provide medical
coverage for County employees and retirees.

The County converted from a self-insured program in November 1996 for Workers' Compensation. All losses prior to November 10, 1996 were assumed by an
insurer in a loss portfolio transfer (LPT) with a $12.5 million limit of liability. An audit of the LPT incurred claims was completed in February to verify the remaining
balance of the limits of liability. The unreserved balance was determined to be in excess of $1 million for 62 remaining claims. Individual file reserves were
determined to be sufficient for the exposures of the open claims. The County maintained a full statutory ge for Workers’ C ion through June 30,
2004. The County remained self-insured for general liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 but the self-insured ion to $250 from the
previous $1 million self-insured retention. Excess limits were again renewed at $25 million. As of June 30, 2004, the County’s general liability fund has set aside $
5,032.

Aviation liability, including airport i and hull ge ($1 ible) is provided on a fully insured basis with a deductible of $10.

Other coverage for property, medical ice and employ i are provided under pooled insurance programs. Each program carries a deductible or
SIR of $10 or $25 (Crime Bond).

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The financial records and transactions of the County and its blended component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, have been audited by M. Green and
Company, L.L.P., a firm of certified public accountants, and their opinion is included in the Financial section of this report.

In addition, the County of Tulare is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended in
1996, and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Information related to
the single audit, including a schedule of expenditures of federal awards, the independent auditor's reports on internal control and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, and a schedule of findings and { costs are i ina issued single audit report.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the County of Tulare for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. This was the eighth consecutive year that
the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
ici i p ive annual financial report. The report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal

requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the
Certificate of Achi t Program’s requi and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

| r's it
To the Board of Supervisors
County of Tulare
We have audited the ing financial of the g ctivities, the i type activities, the
presented component unit, each major fund, and the fund i ion of the County of Tulare, California (the

County), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these i based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the First 5 Tulare
County, which represent 100 percent of the assets and of the dif pi d unit for the year then ended.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been fumished to us, and our opinion, in so far
as it relates to the amounts included for the First 5 Tulare County, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in with auditing g Il pted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits i in Gt Auditing , issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evid pporting the and di in
the financial statements. An audit also includes the ing princi| sed and i { made by

as well as ing the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respecti | position of the g ivities, the busi type activities, the di p

component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of June 30, 2004, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respectk Y for the
general fund for the fiscal year then ended in with pl g | d in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 24, 2004 on our consideration of
the County's interal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit p d in with Auditing and
should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.
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The management's discussion and analysis on pages 15 through 28 is not a required part of the basic ial but is Y
information required by the G A il Board. We have applied certain limited p , which incipally of

of the of and p ion of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it. -
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial that collectively prise the County’s basic financial
The y section, ing and individual fund financial and and ical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial The i and indi fund
and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The i y section and istical section have not

been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the County of Tulare, we offer readers of the County's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the County of Tulare for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal. ~All amounts, unless otherwise indi are expl in of
dollars.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the County of Tulare exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $204,117 (net assets). Of this amount, $57,298
(unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The County’s total net assets, which may serve as a useful indicator of financial position, improved by $12,973, including the recognition of $9,594
revenues related to prior periods. (See Note Il C.).

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Ccumy of Tulare govemmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $118,773, an increase of
$4,557 in comparison with the prior year, the of $5,467 related to prior periods. (See Note Ill C.). Approximately $32,728 is
i for spending at the go s di ion (unreserved fund balance).

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $17,124 or 4.2% of total general fund expenditures.
The County of Tulare's total debt decreased by $8,842 (5.2%) during the current fiscal year.
Overview of Financial Statements

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the County of Tulare conS|sts of three parts - management's d:scuss:on and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, and an optional section that pi and for j funds,
enterprise funds, and internal service funds. This dlscussu:m and analy5|s is intended to serve as an introduction to the County of Tulare’s basic financial
statements. The County of Tulare’s basic financial three : 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The two types of financial statements are designed to present two different views of the County.

ide fi The go ide financial statements provide readers with a broad overview of both long-term and short-
term information about the County of Tulares overall financial status in a manner similar to a privat tor i The two g ide
statements report the County’s net assets and how they have changed. Net assets are one way to rneasure the County’s financial health or position.

The go ide fi ial of the County are divided into two categories:

Governmental activities - most of the County's basic services are included here, such as fire, public works and general administration, which receive
approximately 82.4% of their support from charges for services and operating grants and contributions. Property taxes, sales taxes, and other revenues
covered the remaining costs.



Business-type activities - charge fees to users which are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs for certain services, such as water and
sewer services and solid waste disposal. In fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, 64.2% of costs were recovered through fees to users. Property taxes,
operating grants, and investment income covered the remaining costs.

The of net assets p ion on all of the County of Tulare’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net
assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of the improvement in the financial position of the County of
Tulare.

The of activitie i ion showing how the g 's net assets during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that are the result of cash flows in prior fiscal periods (e.g., prepay 1t of reti [

or will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., eamed-but-unused vacation leave).

The go ide i include not only the County of Tulare itself (known as the primary government), but also seven legally separate
orgamzatlons for which the elected officials of the County are Financial i ion for six of these blended component units is
combined with the financial information presented for the primary government itself. First § Tulare County is a discretely presented component unit.

The government-wide financial statements can be found in the Basic Financial Statements section following the Management's Discussion and Analysis.

Fund financial statements. A fund is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County

of Tulare, like other state and local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and with fi lated legal requil
The fund i focus on individual parts of the County government. All of the funds of the County of Tulare can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

funds. G funds are used to account for ially the same i ivities in the g
wide financial statements. However, unlike the ide financial governmental fund rnanc:al statements focus on near- tarm inflows
and outfl of , as well as on of resources available for future i Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government's i { i qui .
Because the focus of g funds is than that of the g ide financial it is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar i { for ivities in the g ide financial its. By doing so,
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the County of Tulare's -t i isi Both the g fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, _expenditures, and in fund provide a iliation to facilitate this comparison
between g funds and
The County of Tulare maintains 42 individual governmental funds. Information is p in the g | fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund 1t of , and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the Tulare County Public Facilities
Corporation, and the Tulare County Public Fmancmg Authority, all of which are considered to be major funds Data from the other 43 governmental funds
are comblned into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these g funds is provided in the form of

in this report.

The County of Tulare adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A Y has bee i for the general

fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. Similar comparisons for all nonmajor governmental funds are provided in the form of budget and actual
schedules elsewhere in this report.
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The basic g fund financial can be found ing the G ide Financial in the Basic Financial Statements
section of this report.

Proprietary funds. The County of Tulare maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions

as i in the g vide financial The County of Tulare uses enterprise funds to account for its Solid

Waste Transit, and many sewer and water operanons Internal service funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally. The County of Tulare

uses internal service funds to account for its central services, such as mailroom, print shop, and motorpool, and for insurance coverages. They have been
within g tivities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of i ion as the g ide financial only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial
statements provide separate information for Solid Waste, which is a major fund of the County of Tulare. Data for all nonmajor enterprise funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. All internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund
financial statements, as well. Individual fund data for the nonmajor enterprise funds and the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund fi ial can be found in the Fund Financial Statements section of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. They provide information
about financial relationships in which the County acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources belong AII of lhe
County’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets. Fiduciary funds are not refl in the g¢

the of those funds are not available to support the County of Tulare’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found in the Fund Financial Statements section of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional i ion that is ial to a full ding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found following the Fund Financial Statements in this report.
Other The ini and schedules referred to earlier in ion with jor gt funds, P

funds, internal service funds, and capital assets used in the of g funds are p i iately ing the Notes to the

Financial Statements.

id

¥ Yy

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the County of Tulare, assets
exceeded liabilities by $204,117 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

A portion (3100 011) of the County of Tulare’s net assets (49.0%) for the current year reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, infrastructure,

and vehicles), less any related, outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The County of Tulare uses these capital assets to
prowde services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County of Tulare’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Key elements of the County of Tulare's calculation of net assets for both governmental activities and i type activities for fiscal years ended June
30, 2003 and 2004 are as follows:

County of Tulare's Net Assets
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

As of June 30, 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Current and other assets $264,500 $233449 $54680 $ 74404  $319,180 $307,853
Capital assets 161,316 155,860 21,014 18,032 182,330 173,892

Total assets 425,816 389,309 75,694 92,436 501,510 481,745
Long-term liabilities outstanding 159,962 170,271 40,379 36,935 200,341 207,206
Other liabilities 111,751 82,865 (14,699) 517 97,052 83,382

Total liabilities 271,713 253,136 25,680 37,452 297,393 290,588
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 80,615 79,735 19,396 16,386 100,011 96,121
Restricted 41,803 45,532 5,005 5,005 46,808 50,537
Unrestricted 31,685 10,906 25613 33,580 57,298 44,486

Total net assets $154,103 $136,173 $ 50014 $ 5497 $204,117 $191,144




For the fiscal year ended June 30,

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs
Other
Total revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Education
Culture and recreation
Unallocated depreciation
Unallocated interest expense
Solid Waste
Other business-type activities
Total expenses
IChange in net assets before transfers
Transfers
(Change in net assets
Net assets - July 1
Net assets - June 30

County of Tulare's Changes in Net Assets
P in de)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
$ 90,627 $ 86,685 $ 9,509 $ 9,528 $ 100,136 $ 96,213
322,329 316,850 40 135 322,369 316,985
40,342 37,394 - 22 40,342 37,416
7,632 6,694 658 793 8,290 7,487
33,611 36,829 - - 33,611 36,829
14,193 10,843 534 2,550 14,727 13,393
508,734 495,295 10,741 13,028 519,475 508,323
32,816 37,409 - - 32,816 37,409
145,513 130,282 - - 145,513 130,282
19,411 18,699 - - 19,411 18,699
86,955 87,856 - - 86,955 87,856
202,481 202,308 - - 202,481 202,308
3,356 3,481 - - 3,356 3,481
1,949 1,839 - - 1,949 1,839
589 627 - - 589 627
8,220 9,023 - - 8,220 9,023
- - 12,967 10,361 12,967 10,361
- - 1,839 1,873 ,83 .873
501,290 491,524 14,806 12,234 516,09 503,758
7,444 3,771 (4,065) 794 ,37! 4,565

892 677 (892) 677) - -

,336 4,448 (4,957) 117 3,379 4,56

* 145,767 131,725 54,971 54,8564 * 200,738 186,57
$ 154,103 $136,173 $ 50,014 $ 54971 $ 204,117 $191,144

*__includes prior period adjustment. See Note Ill C.
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The County of Tulare’s overall net assets improved by $12,973 during the current fiscal year, i g the ition of $9,594 related to prior
periods. (See Note Ill C.). These increases are i inthe g and i typ! iviti I i below.

| activities. Gc ivities i the County of Tulare's current year net assets by $17,930, including $9,594 revenues
related to prior periods. The i in gc ivities accounts for all of the growth in the net assets of the County of Tulare compared to an
increase of $4,448 (97.4 %) for the prior year. Key of ing tal activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 are as follows:

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities

operating grants and
contributions
63.36%

unrestricted grants and

contributions
6.61%
sales and other taxes

1.50%
property taxes
7.93%

charges for services
17.81% all other

2.79%
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Total for g ivities increased by $13,439. Local charges for services showed a $3,762 (4.3%) increase over the prior year (largely
due to rate increases), operating grants and contributions for governmental activities increased by $5,479 or 1.7%, while property and other taxes
increased by 8.8% or $3,886.

At the same time, g ivities showed an i of $9,766 in overall An of $15,231 rep the County's ongoing
investment in public protection for the Sheriffs Department ($4,241), for the Agriculture Commissioner ($4,601) to combat pests impacting local growers,
for fire protection (1,208), and for needed mai of the main ($2,230). At the same time, there was a decrease of $4,593 (12.3%) in
general government costs, specifically in Central Services, due to procedural and staffing chang i to reduce costs.

all g ivities (except public protection) have program fficient to fund approxi 94% of prog public
protection only covers a littie more than half (53.3%) of program costs from program revenues. Therefore, nearly 80% of general revenues are used for
public protection.

A comparison of expenses and program revenues for governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 is as follows:

Expenses and Program Revenues -
Governmental Activities
$250,000
$200,000
$1560,000
$100,000
a $50,000
$- o M 4
®
g 28 ﬁ'é Eé o 8 O expenses
= 2T £8 58
E 5§ & g 2 8 = T 22
E-] 8 m program
§, = g - 8 revenues
type activities. Busil { the County of Tulare's net assets by $4,957, offsetting 59.6% of the growth realized in

governmental activities. The County reallzed an increase of $3,379 (1.8%) for the prior year. Key elements of the current changes are as follows:
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| Revenue by Source - Business -type Activities

earnings on investments
4.68%

all other
0.66%

charges for senices

transportation tax
! 88.53% RO

6.13%

! Total for tiviti d by $2 287 (17.6%) over the prior penod Although fees for services remained stable, revenues from
i investment earnings declmed by $2,047. Key in typ for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 are as follows:
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typ ivities showed an i
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fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 is as follows:
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Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County of Tulare uses fund accounting to ensure and iance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the County of Tulare's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
e . Such il ion is useful in ing the County of Tulare’s financial requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County of Tulare’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $118,773, an increase of
$4,557 in comparison with the prior year, including the recognition of $5,467 revenues related to prior periods. (See Note Ill C.). Approximately 27.6% of
this total amount, or $32,728, constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the County of Tulare's discretion. The remainder of
fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not ilable for new i it has already been committed 1) for future debt service payments
(859,876, 2) for toxic cleanup at Harmon Field airstrip per contract with the California Environmental Protection Agency ($5,000), 3) for future collections
on long-term notes receivable ($7,003), 4) for future collections of delinquent property taxes ($11,642), or 5) for a variety of other restricted purposes
(82,524).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County of Tulare. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was
$17,124, while total fund balance reached $36,154. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 4.2% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 8.9 % of that same amount.

The fund balance of the County of Tulare's general fund increased by $4,442 during the current fiscal year as a result of recognition of $5,467 revenues
related to a prior period (See Note Ill C.) and spending in excess of revenues of $1,025. The prior fiscal year resulted in an increase of $917, by
comparison. Key factors of this trend are as follows:

Total revenues of the general fund decreased by $7,799 or 2.0%. Although there were slight increases in most revenue sources, a decrease of $12,342
from State and Federal funding sources resulted in an overall decline.

Overall spending remained stable with a small increase of only $708.

Two major blended component units of the County of Tulare are the Tulare County Public Facilities Corporation (TCPFC) and the Tulare County Public
Financing Authority (TCPFA), which were established to assist with past and future acquisition and maintenance of County structures. Since both of these
blended components are related to capital assets and the financing thereof, the total fund balances of both TCPFC ($9,013) and TCPFA ($50,684) are
restricted for future servicing of debt.

Proprietary funds. The County of Tulare’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but
in more detail.

Total net assets of all proprietary funds was $52,933, with $50,014 of that in enterprise funds and 86.6% ($43,306) of the enterprise funds in Solid Waste.

Unrestricted net assets of Solid Waste at the end of the year amounted to $24,723, and the total reduction in net assets for Solid Waste was $4,417.
Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the County of Tulare’s business-type activities.
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Fund y Hi

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Tulare made several iati totaling $8,691 (2.0 %) in the general
fund appropriations throughout the fiscal year. A $3,094 increase in appropnauons occurred for the acqulsmon of capital assets, and $5,219 for additional
spending in health and social services, all for the Health and Human Services Agency when federal grant money became available.

For the current year, $7,472 was from begi ilable fund balance. Actual revenues realized fell $31,997 short of budgetary estimates,
especially that to be received as aid from State and Federal sources As aresult, expenditures for the current year fell $37, 118 below budgetary estimates
as well. The reduced spending helped to offset the red , but the general fund still d an overall red in

available fund balance of $1,025. This negative change to fund balance resulting from current activity was offset by the recognition of $5,467 prior period
revenues. (See Notelll C.)

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The County of Tulares investment in capital assets for its governmental and busi typt ivities at current y d to
$182,330 (net of depre This i in capital assets includes land, buil and imp 3 i and vehicles, and
some construction in progress.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
1. The adult pre-trial facility remains unoccupied due to lack of funding for staff and other costs.

2. Ongoing construction in progress of the County-wide energy management project is at $9,947 as of June 30, 2004.

County of Tulare's Capital Assets

(net of depreciation)
Govemmental Activities  Business-type Activities Total
As of June 30, 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
$ 8349 § 8256 $ 6728 § 6728 § 15077 $ 14,984
Buildings and improvements 122449 126,480 12,058 9,220 134,507 135,700
Equipment and vehicles 14519 14,793 2,228 2,043 16,747 16,836
Infrastructure in progress 5437 4848 - - 5437 4848
Construction in progress 10,562 1,483 - 41 10,562 1,524
Total $161,316_$155860 § 21014 § 18032 _§ 182,330 $173,892
At June 30, 2004, the County had commitments of $ 973 for the ion of energy projects for the coming year.

Additional information on the County of Tulare’s capital assets can be found in Note IV. E of this report.
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Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County of Tulare had total outstanding debt of $159,919. Of this amount, almost 40.5%
(864,743) comprises debt for Certificates of Participation (COP's) issued by the Tulare County Public Facilities Corporation for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities. Approximately 21.1 % of the outstanding debt of the County of Tulare ($33,800) represents Pension Obligation
Bonds used to pay a previous unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Another 27.4% (343, 808) is the outstanding balance of Variable Rate Demand Bonds
issued by the Tulare County Public Facilities Authority to provide ing of future i and ion of major capital facilities. The remaining
balance is for several capital leases and loans used for new equipment and vehicles (i.e., patrol vehicles for the Sheriff's department, and fire engines)
used in the general operations of the County of Tulare.

County of Tulare's Outstandiing Debt
Govemmental Adivies  Business-type Adivities Total

s of June 30, 004 2008 004 2003 2004 2003
Loans $17281 $1786 $ -8 - $ 17281 $ 1755
Capital leases 287 39 - 287
Variable rate dermand bonds 43800 44200 8 9 43808 4200
Pension abligation bonds 6800 380 - - 33800 35870
Certificates of Participation 63133 69,131 1610 1637 64743 70,768

Totals $166,301 $167,115. $ 1618 § 1646  $150919 $168,761

The overall decrease of current year outstanding debt of the County of Tulare over the prior year is $8,842 (5.2%). The largest reductions occurred with
payments of $5,998 against the COP’s and $3,180 paid on equipment and vehicle loans. The County also borrowed $993 for additional vehicle purchases
and $1,913 for an economic development project during the current year.

The County of Tulare maintains long-term credit ratings of “Aaa” and “AAA” from Moody's Investors Service and Fitch IBCA, Inc., respectively.
Constitutional Amendment XIIIA, passed by vote of the people and effective July 1, 1978, prohibits the County from raising ad valorem property taxes

above 1% of full cash value. Thus, the legal debt margin ($237 711) is 1.25% of assessed valuation ($19,016,907). As of June 30, 2004, the County had
no tax supported general obligation bonded debt g.

Additional information on the County of Tulare's long-term debt can be found in Note IV. J. of this report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’'s Budgets

As of June 2004, there are 1.1 million unemployed in California g to the El D Dep This 6.3% versus the
U.S. rate of 5.6%. The regional unemployment rate for Tulare County is 14 9%. Locally, the suggested cutbacks of State support for local programs could
increase the unemployment rate in the County where local government is one of the largest employers.

The State is predicting continued deficits in the State budget through the end of fiscal year 2004-05. Suggested cuts of State-to-County money include
reduced support for such things as g , senior progi State support for the maintenance and building of roads, State and community
colleges, and local law enforcement grants, forcmg local govemments to cover or possibly abandon some programs, although the amount of such
reductions is not currently determinable. It is predicted that this trend will continue for several years into the future - stretching County resources even
further and bringing many difficult choices among services to be continued and those to be deleted.

The energy crisis experienced recently in California and the associated sharp rise in energy costs has had a significant negative effect on the County’s
resources. In response, the County has committed to $11 million investment in energy saving improvements over many of the County’s oider facilities. As
of June 2004, approximately 90% of the project is completed. The County has already realized savings in utility costs and received more than $325 in
rebates from providers. It is expected that the savings in energy costs will more than repay the investment for many years into the future.

The past two years have shown a marked increase in new housing in Tulare County — pamcularly in the cities of Visalia and Tulare. The County is
beginning to see the results of this building boom in increased property tax . The ion has resulted in new construction of retail
stores and other services to new residents.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the County of Tulare's budget for the 2004-05 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund is $17,124. The County of Tulare has appropriated $8,166 of this amount for
spending in the 2005 fiscal year budget.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County of Tulare’s finances for all those interested. Questions concerning any of the

information provided in this report or requests for additional financial i ion should be to the Tulare County Auditor - Controller's Office,
221 S. Mooney Blivd., Suite 101-E, Visalia, CA, 93291.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of Tulare for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 can also be found at the County’s website
www.co.tulare.ca.us/goverr inancial_servi itor/finrpt.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-wide Financial Statements






Assets:
Current assets:
Cash in banks
Investment in treasury pool
Investments
Imprest cash
Accounts receivables, net
Taxes receivable
Deposits with others
Due from other governments
Inventories
Pension assets
Prepaid items
Lease payments receivable, net of interest
Notes Receivable
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Due from other governments
Lease payments receivable, net of interest
Notes receivable
Advances to Agency funds
Restricted assets - noncurrent
Capital assets:

Land and other assets not being depreciated
Buildings and equipment, net of depreciation

Total capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

County of Tulare
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

4,219
1,610
6,941
560
52,656

24,348
136,968

161,316

227,301

425816

Component Unit

Business-type First 5
Activities Total Tulare County

236 806 $ 72

5,376 88,598 19,138

- 12,029 -

2 80 -

628 6,767 -

- 12,806 -

46 685 -

- 45,451 1,116

- 211 -

- 34,561 -

- 2,640 595

- 107 -

- 62 -

6,288 204,803 20,921
- 4,219

- 1,610 -

5,321 12,262 -

- 560 R

43,07 95,726 -

6,728 31,076 -

14,286 151,254 -

21,014 182,330 N

60,406 296,707 -

75,694 501,510 20,921
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Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 29,370 328 1.828
Due to other governments 7,729 82 -
Internal balances 15,373 (15,373) -
Deposits from others 101 6 -
Salaries and benefits payable 9,543 165 15
Interest payable 2,610 16 -
Unavailable revenue 30,244 - -
Liability claims payable 3,051 - -
Compensated absences 1,761 51 -
Leases payable 153 - B
Loans payable 2,608 - -
Bonds payable 2,945 - -
COPs payable 6,263 26 -
Total current liabilities 111,751 (14,699) 1,843
Noncurrent liabilities:
Liability claims payable 1,981 - -
Compensated absences 11,649 201 -
Advances from Agency funds - 520 -
Closure/postclosure costs payable - 38,066 -
Leases payable 134 - -
Loans payable 14,673 - -
Bonds payable 74,655 8 -
COPs payable 56,870 1,584 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 159,962 40,379 -
Total liabilities 271,713 25,680 1,843
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 80,615 19,396 100,011 -
Restricted for:
Capital projects 8,926 - 8,926 -
Debt service 18,088 - 18,088 -
Roads projects 4,853 - 4,853 -
Redevelopment 6,570 - 6,570 -
Other purposes 3,366 5,005 8,371 7126
Unrestricted 31,685 25,613 57,298 11,952
Total net assets $ 154,103 $ 50,014 $ 204,117 $ 19,078

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Functions / Program:

County of Tulare

Statement
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 2

Govemmental activities:
General t
Public protection
Public ways and facilties
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Education
Cutture and

Unallocated depreciation

Unallocated interest expense
Total govemmental activitie

Bullmn—typn activities:
Solid

O e business-type activite:
Total business-type ”Mﬂ“
Total Primary Govemment

Component unit:
First 5 Tulare County
Total component unit

Program Revenues In Net Assets
Operating
Charges for Grants and Govemmental Business-type First §
Expenses Services Contributions ~_Activities Activities Total
s 32816 s 3185 8 3626 2,705 s 2,708
145,513 19,635 57,884 (67.994) (67.994)
19.411 1,109 16,832 (1,470) (1,470)
86,955 11,385 79,486 3,896 3,896
202481 25499 163,491 (13491) (13,491)
3,386 112 507 (2,737) (2,737)
1,949 1012 503 (434) (434)
589 - - (589) (589)
- - (8,220 8,220)
90627 322379 (88,334) (88,33)
12,967 8878 (4,049) (4.049)
1,839 631 (1,208) 1,208
14,806 9,509 40 (5,257) (5,257)
$ 516,086 $ 100136 $ 322,369 (68,334 (6.257) (93,591)
] 9,633 -8 7275 B (2,368)
s 9,633 - $ 7275 (2,358)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 30007 - 30007 -
Property taxes, levied for flood control 343 - 343 -
Property taxes, levied for red 1,885 - 1,885 -
Property taxes, levied for fire protection 5,939 - 5,939 -
Property taxes, levied for library 2,168 - 2,168 -
s-lu and other taxes 7,632 658 8,200 -
Grants and mrmmm ot restricted to specific programs 33611 - 33811 -
Eamings on investment 2,880 503 3,383 129
Miscellaneous 5,321 - 5321 -
o nt revenues 5,929 - 5920 -
Gain on sale of fixed assets 63 31 94 .
" 892 (892) - -
Total general revenues and transfers 96,670 300 96,970 T
Change in net assets 8,336 957) 3,379 2.229)
Net assets - July 1 136,173 54971 191,144 21307
Prior period adjustments 9,564 - 9,504
Net assets - June 30 s 154,103 50014 S 204,117 B 15078

‘The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Exhibit 3

County of Tulare
Balance Sheet
Govemmental Funds
June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Public Public Nonmajor Total
General Facilities Financing Govemmental Govemmental
Fund Corporation Authority Funds unds
s 570 s - B - s - s 570
Investment in treasury pool 49,592 61 - 24,239 73,802
Investments 1 8,998 3,029 1 12,029
Imprest cash 7% - - 2 78
Receivables (net where applicable -
of allowances for uncollectibles): -
Accounts 3691 - 2,092 5.783
Taxes 12,806 - - - 12,806
Deposits with others. - - - 639 639
Due from other County funds 2,782 - - 2,017 4,799
Due from other governments. 43,639 - - 6,031 49,670
Inventories - . - 211 211
Prepaid items 1,841 - - 799 2,640
Advances to other County funds 325 - - - 325
Advances to Agency funds 520 - - 560
Lease payments receivable, net of interest - - 1717
Notes receivable 5916 7,003
Restricted assets . 52,655
Total assets. $ 121,759 s s 225,377
Liabilities:
Accounts payable s 20,168 s - s - s 7622 s 27,788
Due to other County funds 16,365 - - 3625 19,990
Due to other governments 7.729 - - 7729
Due to others 703 - - - 703
Deposits from others 55 46 - - 101
Salaries and benefits payable 8179 - - 1,143 9,322
Deferred revenue 32,408 - - 8,238 40,646
Advances from other County funds - - - 325 325
Tax revenue anticipation notes payable - - - - .
Notes payable - - - - -
Total liabilties 4 20,653 706,604
Fund balances:
Reserved for imprest cash 76 . - 2 78
Reserved for inventories - - - 21 211
rved for prepaid items 551 - - 799 1,350
Reserved for advances to other funds 845 - - 40 885
Reserved for taxes receivable 11,642 - - - 11,642
Reserved for notes receivable 5916 - - 1,087 7,003
Reserved for Harmon Field cieanup - - - 5,000 5,000
Reserved for debt service - 9,013 50,684 179 59,876
Unreserved 17124 - - 17,124
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Special revenue funds . - - 11,678 11,678
Capital projects funds - - - 3,926
Total fund balances 36,154 EXIE) 50,684
Total liabilities and fund balances s 121,759 $ 9,089 s 50,684 s s 225,377

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




Exhibit 3.1
County of Tulare
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total fund balances for governmental funds (Exhibit 3) s 118,773
Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the govemmental funds.
Those assets, including those reported in Internal Service Funds, consist of:
Land

$ 8,349

Buildings and improvements, net of $41,236 accumulated depreciation 122,449

Equipment and vehicles, net of $29,461 accumulated depreciation 14,519

Construction / projects in progress 10,562

Infrastructure, CIP 7
Total capital assets 161,316

The future revenue resulting from a direct financing lease between the County (as lessor) and the City of Dinuba for the Courthouse/
Police Station is categorized as deferred for the fund statements, but is recognized for the govemment-wide statements. 3,007

The future revenue resulting from the delay in reimbursements from the State for mandated programs (SB-80) and for Vehicle

License Fees is categorized as deferred for fund statements because the funds will not be available for more than one year.

Tobacco Settiement revenue and delinquent property tax penalties are categorized as deferred for fund statements because

the revenues will not be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. However, the revenu is recognized for the

government-wide statements. 7,395

Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's govemmental funds are not due and payable in the current period and, accordingly,

are not reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an
expenditure when due. Al liabilities are reported i the statement of net assets. Balances, including those reported in Internal Service
Funds, at June 30 are:

Accrued interest on debt s (2610)
Capital leases payable (287)
Loans payable (17,281)
Bonds payable

COP's payable

General liability claims payable (

Compensated absences (13,410)

Total long-term liabilities (179,353)

The pension assets resulting from contributions in excess of the Annual Required Contribution in FYE June 30, 1997 are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 34,561

Intemal service funds (See Exhibit 6) are used by the County to charge the costs of various central services to individual funds. The
assets (except capital assets included above) and liabilities (except long term liabilities included above) of the intemal service

funds are included in govemmental activities in the statement of net assets. 8,404
Total net assets of governmental activities ( Exhibit 1) $ 154,103

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



County of Tulare
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 4

Public Public Nonmajor Total
General Facilities Financing Govemmental Govemmental
Fund Corporation Authority Funds Funds
Revenues: —
Taxes and special assessments s 37,639 s - s - s 39,934 s 77573
Licenses and permits 7,213 - 1 7,214
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 6,726 - - 1242 7,968
Interest, rents and concessions 538 521 712 2,979
Intergovernmental revenues - - 47,608 323,639
Charges for services - - 2,755 57,450
Other revenues 4672 10,484
Total revenues 538 521 56,924 487,307
Expenitures:
Current:
General government 16,963 - - 6,201 23,164
Public protection 112,105 - - 27,407 139,512
Public ways and faciliies - - - 18,764 18,764
Health and sanitation 85,383 - - 782 86,165
Public assistance 187,113 - . 14,726 201,839
Education 946 - - 2424 3,370
Culture and recreation 1,831 - - - 1,831
Debt service:
Principal retirement 139 5,998 400 4722
Interest and fiscal charges 852 3,489 825 2,760
Capital outiay - - 1352
Total expendiures 9,487 1225 79,138
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (18,674) (8,949) (704) 17,786 (10,641)
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of general fixed assets 17 - - 60 177
Sale of note receivable 5,321 - - - 5,321
Capital lease proceeds 30 - - - 30
Capital lease principal payments - - - 101 101
Loan s 993 - - 1913 2,906
Transfers in 46,975 8,887 4,027 41,668 101,657
Transfers (out) (35,787) - 1,223) (63,451 (100,461
Total other financing sources (uses) 17,640 Y 2,804 (19,709 9,631
Net change in fund balances (1,025) ©2) 2,100 (1,923) (910)
Fund balances, July 1 31,712 9,075 48,584 24,845 114,216
Prior period adjustment 5,467 - - - 5,467
Fund balances, June 30 s 36,154 $ 9,013 50,684 $ 22922 s 118,773

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,



County of Tulare
Reconcillation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Chu\w in Fund Balances of Govemmental Funds
the Statement of Activities
For m- Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

nge in fund balances Exhibit 4;

The change in net assets reported for govemmental activities in the statement of activities is different because:

However in activiies, the cost of the ot
s allocated over thelr estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
expense difers from captal outiays expenditures in the current period.

Govemmental funds do not report capital assets acquired through capital lease ogreemenu However, in the statement of activities,
the cost is recognized g into the long-term eg

. However in m- statement of activities, the cost of those assets.
s allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as d
fscal year are for Construction in Progress, there Is no depreciation lml \we 848 back the cosl Icurrd s ar

when received. However, in the statement
of activities, proceeds of the sale must be offset by the book v.m of the asset sold to determine a gain or loss on the sale.
‘This is the book value of the capital assets sokl in the curent period.

report the result y (as lessor) and me Cciy
of Dinuba for Station as defered However, for the statemer
the revenue was recognized upon the signing of the drect inancing lease -gmmem Therefore, subsequent receipt Mpmw-ry
recognized revenue s in the g

the the State for mandated
programs (SB-90) and for Vehicle License Fess as dsferred rovenus becausa the delay wil exceed one year. Tub.ooo Settiement
for fund statements. will not be.

available to liquidate labilties of the However, for , the revenue Is recognized when eamed.

funds report the rvice However, r-p.ymm of principal
reduces long-term liablities on the statement of net a sea and hasno -ma on the statement of activities

Similarly, loan and capital lease proceeds are reported as other financing sources by govemmental funds. However, issuing debt
in the statement of net assets increases long-term liabilites and has no affect on the statement of activities.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the funds, are for transactions
that are not normally paid with expendable avallable financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, which is presented
on the accrual basis, expenses and liablities are reported when amounts are due and payable. In addition, interest on long-term
debtis under the modified of , rather than as it accrues. This adjustment
combines the net changes of three balances for the current period.

Compensated absences s
Amortization of pension assets
Accrued interest on debt

Combined adjustment

Intemal service funds (See Exhibit 7) are used by y ge of various rages and central
services [ with

Changes in net assets (Exhibit 2)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 5
County of Tulare
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
| (amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
! Budgmad Amounts Positive Positive
i Griginal Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
: Revenues:
! Taxes and special assessments:
Assessor s o0 § 970 s - s 1,349 B 379
General County Revenues 34,237 34,237 - 36,290 2,083
License and permi
Agriculture Commissioner 134 134 - 133 )
Assessor 40 40 - 37 @)
County Counsel 205 205 - 208 3
General County Revenues 3,400 3,400 - 3,570 170
Health & Human Services 1,942 1,784 (158) 1,874 90
. Resource Management 1 379 1,379 - 1,369 (10)
Sheriff - Coroner 5 - 3 (2
Treasurer - Tax Collector 7 7 - 9 2
Trial Courts 9 9 - 10 1
Fines, forfeitures and penalties:
Agriculture Commissioner 1 15 4 20 5
District Attorney 134 134 - 141 7
Drug & Alcohol Abuse Testing 70 70 - 70 -
General County Revenues 2,500 2,500 - 3,514 1,014
Health & Human Services 60 70 10 8 19
! Probation 7 7 - 5 (2)
Resource Mamemem Agency 10 10 - 22
Sheriff - Corone 6 6 - 6 -
Treasurer - Tax Collecor 185 155 - 182 27
Trial Courts 2432 2432 - 2677 245
Interest, rents and concessions:
CPA 2000 28 33 5 ) -
General County Revenues 1,720 1,720 - 40 (1,680)
Miscellaneous Administration 38 38 - 30 ®)
Resource quugamem Agency 2 2 - 137 12
TRAN / Teet - - - 968 968
Cont.



Variance with
Original Budget -
Budgeted Amounts. Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts
Intergovermental revenues:
Action Project 1,501 1576 75 1,206
Agriculture Commissioner 5,349 8,390 3,041 6517
ssessor 1,084 1,084 - 638
Auditor-Controller - - - 10
Cooperative Extension 20 20 - 14
CPA 2000 1,259 1,259 - 1,259
District Attorney 2,040 2431 3901 1,864
General County Revenues 52,062 52,962 - 48,920
Health & Human Services 216,550 223,812 7,262 202,174
Local Law Enforcement 600 600 - 500
Multi-Agcy. Gang Violence Program 38 64 26 44
Probation 5,200 5,521 312 5078
Resource Management Agency 6,963 6963 - 2,956
Rural Crime 673 673 - 852
‘Sheriff - Coroner 3,862 4764 902 4019
Charges for services:

Agriculture Commissioner 782 782 - 758
Assessor 1,869 1,869 - 1,906
Auditor-Controller 575 728 150 817
Cooperative Extension - - - 1
County Administrative 109 109 - 108
County Counsel 2,035 2,035 - 1,091
District Attorney 984 984 - 686
General County Revenues 2,277 1477 (800) 1,647
Health & Human Services 20,872 31,588 1714 30,351
Miscellaneous Administration (324) (324) . (267)
Multi-Agency Gang Violence 37 37 - 34
Personnel 627 627 - 812
Probation 1,669 1,601 32 1,303
Public Defender 80 80 - o7
Purchasing 128 128 - 148
Resource Management 4,984 4,985 1 4,586
Sheriff - Coroner 5,500 5,500 - 5,906
Telephone 765 765 - 776
Treasurer - Tax Collector 1,397 1,397 - 1,197
Trial Courts 2,310 2,310 - 2,059

County of Tulare
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)
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| Other revenues:

Action Project - - - 2 2
Agriculture Commissioner m 11 - 109 (2
1 Assessor 51 51 - 75 24
Auditor-Controller 2 02 - 126 3
| Cooperative Extension 6 6 - 3 )
i County Counsel 1 1 - 1 -
| District Attorney 149 149 - 148 -
General County Revenues 333 1,133 800 1,124 (9)
i Health & Human Services 2,116 2,281 165 2,946 665
| Local Law Enforcement - - - 2 2
Multi-Agency Gang Violence 72 72 - 2 (46)
i Miscellaneous Administration - - - 12 12
| Personnel 1 1 - 7 6
Probation 93 93 - 84 ©)
! Public Defender - - - 14 14
' Purchasing 37 37 - 48 "
| Resource Management 248 396 160 181 (215)
i Sheriff - Coroner 801 657 56 876 219
Treasurer - Tax Collector 56 56 - 39 17)
" Trial Courts 8 8 - (12) (20)
i Total revenues 407,183 421,321 14,138 389,324 (31,897)
! Expenditures:
rrent:
General government:
or 4,759 4778 (19) 4763 15
! Auditor-Controller 1,550 2112 (562) 1,733 a79
| Board of Supervisors 1,207 1,201 8 1,212 79
| Capital Purchases 8 8 - - 8
Central Telephone - - - - -
| Contingencies 2,659 o71 1,088 - 671
| County Administrative 630 703 (163) 742 51
County Counsel 2,037 2,027 10 1792 235
| Miscellaneous Administration (3,108) (2,263) (842) 487 (2,750)
| Personnel 644 650 () 529 121
Purchasing 13 13 - 84 29
Resource Management 3,220 3,222 7 2,595 627
i Telephone 765 765 - 799 (34)
! Treasurer - Tax Collector 2422 2,420 2 2,227 193
Cont.

39




County of Tulare

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Public protection:
Action Project
Agriculture Commissioner

Assessor
CPA 2000

District Attorney

Drug & Alcohol Abuse Testing
Health & Human Services

Local Law Enforcement

Multi-Agey. Gang Violence Program
Probation

Public Defender

Resource Management

Rural Crime

Sheriff - Coroner

Trial Courts

Health and sanitation:
CPA 2000
Health & Human Services
Public assistance:
Health & Human Services
Probation
Education:
Cooperative Extension
Miscellaneous Administration

Culture and recreation:
Resource Management

General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with
Original Budget -
Budgeted Amounts
Original Final (Negative)
1,385 1475 (90)
8,081 10,948 (2.867)
1,783 1,724 59
1,287 1,287 -
12,154 12,161 @
120 150 (30)
707 681 2
600 604 @
636 662 (26)
19,395 19,013 382
6,003 6,169 (76)
9,668 9,657 1"
673 633 40
52,536 50,604 1932
7,346 7,563 (217)
96,624 98,634 (2010)
191,423 194,632 (3,200)
366 366 -
889 865 2
13 113 -
1,699 1,649 50

40

__Actual Amounts

1,220
8,805
1370

“@
85,387

186,767
346

833
13

1,831

Exhibit 5 (Cont)

Variance with

___(Negative)

255
2,143
354
2

7,865
20

32

(182)



Debt Service:
Principal retirement:

Auditor - Controller 61 64 3 64 -
Resource Management - 6 (®) - 6
Sheriff - Coroner 88 88 - 7% 13
Interest and fiscal charges:
Auditor - Controller 21 18 3 18 -
Sheriff - Coroner 18 18 - 13 5
! TRAN - - - 821 (821)
| Capital Outiay:
Action Project 116 102 14 65
P Assessor 470 490 (20) -
Auditor - Controller 14 2 () 17
Board of Supervisors - - - 25
Capital Purchases 2127 2127 - -
County Administrative 1 1" - 10
i District Attorney - - - 95
Health & Human Services 32 2627 (2,595) 1,357
Miscellaneous Administration 20 20 - 28
! Resource Management 2,664 2,856 (192) 185
N oroner 71 463 (202) 816
; Treasurer - Tax Collector 26 26 - 68
. Total expenditures 436,425 445,116
i Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (20,242) (23,795) 5447 (18,674) 5,121

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of general fixed assets:

- - 117 17
Sale of Note Receivable
General County Revenues - - . 5,321 5,021
Capltal lease proceeds
Resource Management - £ g 30 ®
Loan proceed:
Capital Purchases 2,135 2,135 - 993 (1,142)
i Transfers in:
District Attorney 500 500 - - (500)
General County Revenues - - - 190 190
Health & Human Services 44,977 45,389 412 46,208 819
Probation 578 578 - 577 (1)
Resource Management 56 56 - - (56)
[ Sheriff - Coroner . 10 10 - (10)
]
|
Cont



Transfers (out):
Action Project
Agriculture Commissioner
Assessor
Auditor
Board of Supervisors
Cooperative Extension
County Administrative
County Counsel
CPA 2000
District Attorney
Health & Human Services
Local Law Enforcement

Miscellaneous Administration
Mult-Agency Gang Violence

Personnel

Probation
Public Defender
Purchasing

Resource Management Agency

Rural Crime Program
Sheriff - Coroner
Treasurer/Tax Collector
Trial Courts

Total other financing sources (uses)

Change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Prior period adjustments
Fund balance, June 30

County of Tulare

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

(amounts expressed in thousands)
Variance with
Original Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final (Negative)
. (169) (169)
- (20) (20)
. (13) (13)
- ® ®
- (24) (24)
- (10 (4 6)
(4) @
- (385) (388)
(18,947) (20,565) (1.618)
(7,528) (7,788) (260)
- (@) (@7)
- (8) )
- (729) (729)
. (50) (50)
- (91)
- (31)
) (25529)
. @)
- (39)
21,770 16,213 (6,557)
(7.472) (7.582) (110)

27,582 27,582

s ggﬂu. $ 20,000 $ 110)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Actual Amounts

(13
(232)
(112)

(56)

(1,025)

31,712
___saer
$ 36,154

Exhibit 5 (Cont)

Variance with
Final Budget -
Positive
(Negative)

(13)
(63)

(1.358)
(11)
(260)

6,567
4,130

5467
$ 16,154

Concluded






Exhibit 6

| J
(amounts expres:
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Intemal
"Nonmajor Service
Total Funds
Assets
Current assets:
| Cashin banks s 26 s - s 2% s -
Investment in treasury pool 3,950 1426 5376 2330
| Imprest cash 2 - 2 -
I Accounts receivable, net 53 75 628 358
Deposits with others - 4 46 -
| Due from other County funds 15378 370
i Total current assets THAT 21,668 70,056
| Noncurrent assets:
i Notes receivable 5321 - 5,321 -
| Restrcted assets 43,088 5 43,07 -
| Capitai assets:
! Land 8116 612 6728 -
i Buildings and improvements, net 5470 6568 12,058 -
I Equipment and vehicles, net 1997 21 2228
Construction In progress - - -
i Total capital assets 13,563 743 71014
! noncurrent assets 61,670 7.4% 69,406
{ Tot X
| Liabilties
] Current iabities:
H Accounts payable 218 110 228 879
! Due to other County funds - 5 5 552
| Due to other governments 82 - 8 -
| Deposits from others . 6 [ -
Salaries and benefits payable 185 - 165 221
| Interest payable - 18 18 314
| Compensated absences payable 5 - 51 22
! Claims payable - - - 3,081
i Loans payable - - 553
; Capital lease payable - - - 6
| COPs payable 26 26
Total current liabilties 576 763 &9 5861
Noncurrent fiabllies:
Compensated absences payable 201 - 201 34
Advances from Agency funds - 520 520 -
) Closure/postiosure costs payable 38,006 - 38,086 -
Claims payable - - - 1,081
Loans payable - - 9,903
Bonds payable - 8 -
! Capttal lease payable - - - 2
COPs payable - 1,584 -
Total noncurrent liabities. 38267 0,370 12,224
i Total labilties 38,763 41058 17,885
|
i Net assets:
! Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 13,583 19,396 197
| Restricted for other purposes 5,000 5,005 o2
i Unrestricted 24723 25,813 1750
Total net assets (defich) s 43,306 s 50,014 s 2,019

| ‘The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



|
|
i
[
1
1
!
i

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Rents and concessions
Other revenues
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplies
Insurance premiums paid
Landfill closure and postclosure costs

Claims incurred
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Intergovernmental revenues
Taxes and assessments
Investment earnings
Assumption of compensated absences
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Change in net assets

Netassets, July 1
Prior period adjustment
Net assets, June 30

County of Tulare

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 7

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Internal
Solid ‘Nonmajor Service
Waste Enterprise Total Funds
s 8,845 631 s 9476 38,224
20 - 20 8
13 - 13 501
8,878 631 9500 38,733
3,376 - 3376 4,801
5,340 1,380 6720 18,317
- - - 11,382
3484 - 3484 -
- 3 3 -
767 343 1,110 -
- - - 1,354
12,067 1,726 14,603 36,854,
(4.089) (1,005 (5,184) 1,879
3 31 -
40 - 40 100
- 658 658 -
495 8 503 5
- . - (319)
- (113) (113) (409)
566 553 1,119 (623)
(3.523) 542) (4.065) 1,256
. . 555
- 3 3 21
(894) 1) (895) (225)
@a17) 540) (4,957) 1,607
47723 7,248 54,971 (2,815)
- . - 4127
$ 43,308 5,708 $ 50014 2,919
S

‘The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from users
Premiums from departments
Internal activity - (payments to) other County funds
Receipts from rents and concessions
Other revenues
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Payments for claims
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Intergovernmental revenues
Taxes and assessments
Internal activity - (to) other County funds
Internal activity - from other County funds
Deposits to others
Advances from other County funds
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
(Acquisition) disposal of fixed assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment purchase
Investment earnings
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

County of Tulare
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 8

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds. Internal
Solid fonmajor Service
Waste Enterprise Total Funds
$ 8,980 $ 626 9,616 $ 22,108
- - - 16,090
- ) \a77) (1,468)
20 - 20 8
13 - 13 171
(3,403) - (3,403) (4,562)
(5,266) 1177 (6,443) (29,292)
- - - (1,782)
354 (728) 374) 1273
32 94 126 100
B 658 658 -
(16,272) ) (16,275) (586)
16 22 573
- 3 @) -
. 60 60 -
(16,234) 822 (15,412) 87
(4,061) - (4,061) (5,840)
- (28) (28) (533)
- (113) (113) (563)
(4,081) (141) (4,202) (6,936)
(6,321) - (6,321) -
495 8 503 5
(4,826) 8 (4,818) 5
(24,767) (39) (24,806) (5,571)
72,021 1,470 73,491 14,901
$ 47,254 $ 1,431 $ 48,685 $ 9,330




Displayed as:
Cash in banks
Investment in treasury pool
Imprest cash
Restricted assets which are cash equivalents

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:
Landfill closure and postclosure costs
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in salaries and
benefits payable and compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in claims payable
Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Non cash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets from government
Assumption of compensated absences
Initiation of capital lease purchase

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

236 - 236 -
3,950 1,426 5376 9,330
2 - 2 -
43,066 5 43,071 -
47,254 1,431 48,685 9,330
(4,089) (1,095) (5.184) 1,879
3,484 - 3,484 -
767 343 1,110 -
145 (2 143 (356)
74 26 100 (42)
@7 - @7 220
- - - (428)
4,443 367 4,810 (606)
354 (728) (374) 1,273
555
(319)
42
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County of Tulare
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2004
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 9

Investment Agency
Trust Funds Funds
Assets
Cash in banks $ N 7,513
Investment in treasury pool 356,882 17,549
Taxes receivable - 3,572
Accounts receivable - 40
Advances to County funds - 520
Total assets 356,882 29,194
Liabilities
Warrants payable 1,374
Due to other County funds 153
Due to other agencies .
Advances from County funds =
Total liabilities 1,527
Net assets
Held in trust for treasury pool participants $ 355,356

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Tulare
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
{(amounts expressed in thousands)

Additions
Contributions
To pooled investments
Total contributions
Investment income
Total additions

Deductions
Distributions from pooled investments
Total deductions
Change in net assets held in trust

Net assets, July 1
Net assets, June 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 10

Investment
Trust Funds

$ 1,911,072
1,91
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COUNTY OF TULARE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2004
p in th

|. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. The Financial Reporting Entity

The County of Tulare is a general law political subdivision of the State of California and as such can exercise the powers specified by the Constitution and laws of the State of
! ) the h

Califomia. The County is governed by an elected five member Board of Supervisors. As required by generally accepted financial
statements present the County and its component units.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the County are either financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the County are such that exclusion would cause the County’s financial to be mi: ing or i Blended units, although legally
separate entities, are, in substance, part of the County’s The ly p unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the County.

In ity with ly il the financial statements of six component units have been included and combined with financial data of the County.
Five component units have an integral relationship with and serve as an extension of the County. Using the criteria of Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity,” management has determined that each entity is as a blended unit due to the ition of each ing Board.
One unitis dis y.

Blended Component Units. The Tulare County Redevelopment Agency, the Terra Bella Sewer Maintenance District, the Tulare County Flood Control District, the Tulare County
Public Facilities Corporation, and the Tulare County Public Financing Authority are entities legally separate from the County of Tulare. For financial reporting purposes, these
entities are considered component units and their indivi financial i ion is p as part of the County’s operations. The blended component units discussed herein
have a June 30 year-end.

Tula Redeve A

The governing board of the Tulare County Redevelopment Agency (T CRA,), an entity legally separate from the County of Tulare, is the County's Board of Supervisors. For financial
reporting purposes, the TCRA is reported as if it were part of the County's operations. The scope of activities of this agency includes capital improvement projects for sewer and
storm-drainage systems, community improvements such as youth and ity facilities, si and graffiti The ities served include Earlimart, Cutler-
Orosi, Goshen, Ivanhoe, Pixley, Poplar/Cotton Center, Richgrove, and Traver. This component unit is reported in two fund types: the Special Revenue Funds and the Debt Service
Funds. In the Special Revenue Funds, Agency L Housing funds are shown as revenues with expenditures related to the low-and moderate-income
housing set-aside program. The Debt Service Funds show tax increment revenues used to pay principal and interest for Agency Tax ion Bonds.

Tera Bella Sewer Maintenance District

Terra Bella Sewer Maintenance District (TBSMD) is an entity legally separate from the County. However, the Tulare County Board of Supervisors serves as the Board of the District.
For financial reporting purposes, the TBSMD is reported as if it were part of the County's operations. The District is operated by the Resource Management Agency and its
Engineering Division. The purpose of the District is to develop, expand, and maintain the TBSMD Wastewater Treatment and Disposal facility. This component unit's financial
information is included as an Enterprise Fund.
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Tulare County Flood Control District

The members of the governing board of the Tulare County Flood Control District (TCFCD), an entity legally separate from the County of Tulare, are the County’s Board of
Supervisors. For financial reporting purposes, the TCFCD is reported as if it were part of the County’s operations. The District's primary responsibility is to provide flood control
related services to the residents of Tulare County. The unit's financial i ion is included as a Special Revenue Fund accounting for reimbursement for flood control
related services and projects within the County.

Tulare County Public Facilities Corporation

The Board members of the Tulare County Public Facilities Corporation (TCPFC), a nonprofit public benefit corporation which is legally separate from the County of Tulare, are
appointees of the County's Board of Supervisors. For financial reporting purposes, the TCPFC is reported as if it were part of the County’s operations as it serves to assist the
County by acquiring equipment and facilities financed by the p of The i and facilities are then leased to the County. This component unit's financial
information is included as a major governmental fund.

Tulare County Public Financing Authori

The Tulare County Public Financing Authority (TCPFA), which is legally separate from the County of Tulare, was established through a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between
the County of Tulare and the Tulare County Redevelopment Agency. The Tulare County Board of Supervisors serves as the Board of the TCPFA. For financial reporting purposes,
TCPFA is reported as if it were part of the County’s operations as It serves to assist the County of Tulare through borrowings, which are used for the acquisition and construction of
public capital improvements and the repair and mai thereof. Lease to TCPFA are payable through the County. This unit's financial i ion is
included as a major governmental fund.

Tulare County In-Home Supportive Services Public Authority

The Tulare County In-Home Supportive Services Public Authority (TCIHSSPA), which is legally separate from the County of Tulare, was i ling to the isi of
Wetfare and Institutions Code Section 12301.6 to serve as the employer of record of Providers of in-home supportive services for purposes of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act. The
Tulare County Board of Supervisors serves as the Board of TCIHSSPA and has control over the day-to-day operations of TCIHSSPA through budget approvals, and the hiring or
dismissal of management. For financial reporting purposes, TCIHSSPA is reported as if it were part of the County's operations.

Complete financial statements for the Tulare County Redevelopment Agency, Tulare County Public Facilities Corporation, and the Tulare County Public Financing Authority are
available at the County of Tulare’s Administrative Office, 2800 W. Burrel Avenue, Visalia, Califomia. The other blended component units do not issue separate financial statements.

Discretely Presented Component Unit The governing board of the Tulare County Children and Families Commission (TCCFC), an entity legally separate from the County of
Tulare, are appointees of the County’s Board of Supervisors who can impose their will upon FSTC through the approval of the Commission’s annual budget and by their authority to
remove F5TC Board members. The Commission was created by Tulare County Ordinance No. 3217 on December 8, 1998, The purpose of the TCCFC is to develop, promote, and
i local early chil ini by the California Children and Families First Commission. On October 24, 2002 the Commission Board
approved a change of name to First 5 Tulare County (FSTC). For financial reporting purposes, the F5TC is di ly because the of the C I are not
used to support County operations. Complete audited financial statements for First 5 Tulare County are available at the County of Tulare's Auditor-Controller's Office, 221 S.
Mooney Boulevard, Room 101-E, Visalia, California.
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B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
The ide financial (i.e., the of net assets and the of report i ion on all of the fiduciary activities of the County and
vts component units. The effect of mlervund activity has been removed from these statements. Govemmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
are reported from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent, on fees and charges for support.
The of activities the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Some functions include expenses that are, in essence, md/rscl expenses of other functions resulting from charges among
funds or programs for centralized services. Program revenues include (1) charges to or h: use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or

privileges provided by a given function or segment, (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operatlonal or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statemems are provided for govemmental funds, propna(ary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
Major funds and major funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

1. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The ide financial are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have
been met.

The accounts of the County are organlzed and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an il fiscal and ing entity with a self- ing set of accounts. Fund
funds to thelr mtended purpose and is used to ald in { i ‘with fii lated Iegal and
The minimum number of funds are mai with legal and i The basis of i ines when ic events are

reflected in financial statements. Measurement focus identifies which transactions and events should be recorded.

The County of Tulare legally adopts an annual budget for the General Fund and all of its Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Projects Funds. Component
units Terra Bella Sewer Maintenance District, Tulare County Redevelopment Agency, Tulare County Flood Control District, and the Tulare County In-Home Supportive Services
Public Authority each adopt an annual budget. Tulare County Public Facilities Corporation and Tulare County Public Financing Authority do not adopt budgets.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The County considers expenditure-
driven grant revenues available if they are collected within one year. All other revenues are considered available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end. Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences,
claims, and which are ized when the obligations are due and payable.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest and special assessments are susceptible to accrual. Property tax revenues recognized are only those levied for the current fiscal
year, which have been collected or expect to be collected within sixty days after fiscal year-end. Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the County are
also recognized as revenue. Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the County and are recognized as revenue at that time.
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Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the “susceptible to accrual” criteria are met. driven grant are
when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred, all other grant requirements have been met, and reimbursement is expected within one year.

The County reports the following major individual governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The Public Facilities Corporation accounts for the activities of the TCPFC that assists the County of Tulare by acquiring equipment and facilities financed from the proceeds of
borrowing. Such equipment and facilities are leased to the County.

The Public Financing Authority accounts for the activities of the TCPFA, which assists the County of Tulare by providing funds for ition, and/or mail of
capital assets.

Additionally, the County reports the following governmental fund types:

The Special Revenue Funds account for revenue sources that are legally i to i for specific (not including private purpose funds or major capital
projects).

The Debt Service Funds account for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by proprietary or permanent funds.

The Capital Projects Funds account for all major mail isition or ion of capital assets not being financed by proprietary or permanent funds.
Proprietary Funds are for on the focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. The County applies all i FASB ing and reporting for its enterprise

operations, including FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, except for those that conflict with or conlradlct GASB pronouncements
The County reports the Solid Waste Fund as its only major individual proprietary fund.

The Solid Waste Fund is an enterprise fund that is used to account for the i and of various landfills and disposal sites for solid waste, and to
prepare for future closure and postclosure expenses.

Additionally, the County reports the following proprietary fund types:

The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that the costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, the activity is
financed with debt secured solely by a pledge of net revenues of the activity, or laws or regulations require that the cost of providing services be recovered through fees and
charges.

The Inhmnl Sorvlce Fundi are used to account for operations that provide mailroom, motor pool, print shop, utilities, custodial and mait services, data
to other funds, departments, or agencies of the County and its component units or to other on a cost-reil
basis. An Internal Service fund operates i m a manner similar to an enterprise fund, but is used when the reporting g itself is the i in the fund.

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others. Trust funds account for assets held by the County under the terms
of a formal trust agreement.
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The County reports the following fiduciary fund types:

The Investment Trust Funds are used to account for assets held for external investment pool participants, such as schools and local special districts, and do present changes in
financial position. Investment Trust Funds are for on the focus and use the accrual basis of accounting.

The Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not present changes in financial position or have a measurement focus Agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis
of accounting. These funds are used to account for assets that the holds for it private or other

2. Financial Statement Presentation

Private-sect of ing and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the gwernment-w»ds and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or of the oard. also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation. The County has elected not to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been elimi from the ide financial in order to remove the “doubling-up” effect of internal service
activities, reciprocal interfund activity, and nonreciprocal interfund activity.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or appllcanls for goods, services, or privil provided, 2) ing grants and ibuti and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special Intemally are reported as general revenues rather than program revenues and include by
definition, all taxes.

Proprietary funds di: i and from items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in tion with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Solid Waste, Transit, Terra Bella Sewer
Maintenance Dlstm:t Assessment Districts, County Servnce Area #1, County Service Area #2 enterprise funds and the County's mtemal sennce funds are charges to customers for
sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds mdude the cost of sales and services, i and iation of capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as and

When both i and i are available for use, it is the County's policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. of New

1. A Board No 39.

The County adopted the isions of GASB No. 39, D ining Whether Ceﬂam Organizations Are Component Units in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. This
i i in No. 14 to apply i whether the beiween a primary government and certain olher
is such that ion of the i would render the financial stalemenls of the repcrllng entity mi ing or i This refers i
organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities for which the primary is not and that do not meet the criteria for discretely presen(ed
component units. Accordingly, all agencies within the County were surveyed. No qualifying organizations have been identified as of June 30, 2004.

2, Board Bulletin 2004-1

In April 2004, GASB issued Technical Bulletin 2004-1, Tobacco Settiement Recognition and Financial Reporting Entity Issues. This Technical Bulletin clarifies guidance on whether
a Tobacco Settlement Authority (TSA) that is created to obtain the rights to all or a portion of future tobacco isa unit of the that created
57




COUNTY OF TULARE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2004
p in

it. In addition, this Technical Bulletin danﬁes i i for the: i nd for made to settling governments pursuant to the Master Settiement
Agreement with the major tobacco The isions of i Bulleﬂn 2004-1 are effectvve for financial statement periods ending after June 15, 2004.

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

The County's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, investments in Treasury pool, and other short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the County and the Districts to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, ial paper, bonds, and the State
Treasurer's Investment Pool.

The County Treasurer's Office administers a pooled investment program for the County and for certain special purpose authorities |ncludmg school districts. As of June 30, 2004,
the special purpose authorities’ cash and pooled investments were approximately 68% of the County Treasurer's Office pooled investment portfolio.

Effective July 1, 1997, the County adopted the isions of il Board (GASB) Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and Extemal Investment Pools, which require governmental entities, including governmental external investment pools, to report certain investments at fair value in the
balance sheet / statement of net assets and recognize the corresponding change in the fair value of investments in the year in which the change occurred. The fair value of pooled
investments is determined annually and is based on current market prices received from the County's securities custodian. The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is required to
invest in accordance with State statutes. At June 30, 2004, the fair value of the County’s position in LAIF approximates the value of the pool shares. Short-term investments are
reported at cost, which approximates fair value. No investments are reported at amortized cost.

The value of the deposits of the County's pooled investment program is equal to the dollars deposited in the program, plus il and less ized gains and
losses) required to record investments at their fair market value as of June 30, 2004. The dollars deposited in the program have been decreased by $2,295 to reflect the decrease in
the fair value of the Investment in the Treasury Pool at June 30, 2004.

In addition, investments outside the Investment Pool were adjusted to fair market value as of June 30, 2004 resulting in a decrease of $118.

2. Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are it 1 ing at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "Advances to / from
other County funds.” All other outstanding balances bemween funds are reported as "Due to ! 1rom other County funds.” Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate they are not available for and are not available financial resources.

All trade and property taxes receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Trade accounts receivable in excess of 180 days comprise the trade accounts
i for ible accounts.

The County is for the of property taxes for all jurisdictions, including the schools and special districts within the County. The
Board of Supervisors levies property taxes as of Sep(ember 1 for property values assessed on July 1. Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments.

The first installment is generally due November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10, and the second installment is generally due on February 1 and delinquent with
penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes become a lien on the property on January 1.

Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due on the January 1 lien date and become delinquent if unpaid after August 31. Property taxes are accounted for in the Unapportioned
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Tax Collection Fund, an agency fund, until i and di to taxing As of fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, the County adopted the altemative
method of secured property tax apportionment available under the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California (also known as the “Teeter Plan”) whereby secured
property taxes are distri to icipating taxing entities (i ing the County and related Component Units) on the basis of the tax levy, including any uncollected amounts at
fiscal year end. The County, as administrator, benefits from future collections of penalties and interest on delinquent taxes. Transactions of the Teeter Plan (including outstanding
debt borrowed for the annual Teeter buyout) are accounted for in the Teeter Fund, an agency fund. Taxes receivable are recorded as of the date levied.

Al jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority from the State C: itution and various legislati isi i in the State Government Codes and Revenue
and Taxation Codes.

3. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

fund type i ies not held for resale are valued at cost using the first-in / first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of most governmental fund type inventories are
recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed except for the Roads Fund, which uses the { i
activities are recorded using the consumption method.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are regularly recurring costs of operations recorded as prepaid items (e.g., prepaid rent and
prepaid employee retirement contributions).

4. Restricted Assets

Resources that will not be used in current i which are i for isition or ion of it assets, or that are i for liquidation of long-t debt
beyond the next year are restricted assets.

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and i i vehicles, and il assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in
the i or busil type activities columns in the ide financial Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial individual cost of
more than $5 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets used in governmental fund types of the County are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation

Infrastructure assets acquired since July 1, 2001 are recorded in the statement of net assets. Pursuant to GASB No. 34, an extended period of deferral is available (fiscal year
ending June 30, 2006) before the County is required to record infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001. The County will record all infrastructure assets (and related
accumulated depreciation) acquired prior to July 1, 2001 by June 30, 2005.

Capital outlay is recorded as expenditures of the General, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects Funds and as assets in the ide financial to the extent the
County’s capitalization threshold is met. Interest incurred during the construction phase of the capital assets of business-type activities is reflected in the capitalized value of the
asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. Amortization of assets acquired under capital leases is included in depreciation and
amortization.
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Capital assets of the County, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight line method and the following estimated useful lives

Assets | Years
Buildings 50
Building improvements 20
Sewer/water systems 7-20
Landfill site improvements 15
Vehicles 2-20
Office equipment 3-16

6. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacations and sick leave and are permitted to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave benefits. The portion relating to the proprietary funds
is expensed as salaries in the year earned. The benefit amounts relating to governmental funds, which will be paid from future resources, are recorded in the government-wide
financial statements. Benefit amounts due and payable at year-end are recorded in the governmental funds as part of Salaries and benefits payable.

In the event of termination or death, an or the Y estate, is for 100% of vacation. The value of accumulated vacation at June 30,
2004 was $10,911. Of this amount, $181 is recorded in busmess -type funds.

Employees in Bargaining Units 1, 3, 6 & 7 who leave County service by retirement after ten years of service may convert 20% of their unused sick leave credits to cash at their

current payroll rate up to a hours. in these same Units leaving County service in good standing, other than by retirement, aﬂer ten years of
service may convert 20% of their unused slck leave credits to cash a( their curren! payroll rate up to a i of 20 hours.

Units 9, 10, 11, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 & 22 and Unit 5, who leave County service by retirement after ten years of service may oonvert 20% of their
unused sick leave credits to cash at their current payroll rate up to a i of 250 hours. in these same Units leaving County service in good standing,

other than by retirement, after five years of service may convert 20% of their unused sick leave credits to cash at their current payroll rate up to a maximum of 40 converted hours.
Bargaining Units 2, 4, 8, 12, 13, 14, 15, & 16 employees who leave County service by retirement after ten years of service may convert 20% of their unused sick leave credits to
cash at their current payroll rate up to a maximum of 176 converted hours. The value of accumulated sick leave at June 30, 2004 was calculated using a termination payment
method and is accrued at $1,746. Of this amount, $28 is recorded in business-type funds.

y time off (CTO) ining, in the event of i or death, is to cash at the current payroll rate. The value of accumulated CTO at June
30 2004 was $1,005. Of this amount, $43 is recorded in the business-type funds.

The County has a sick leave buy back program that allows employees to be compensated on the first pay date in December for a portion of their unused sick leave based on their
years of service and usage in the prior year. Employees with three to five years' service may convert up to 40 hours of sick leave. Employees with over five years may convert up to
60 hours. The amount available for conversion is reduced by the sick leave used in the year ending the 1st of October just prior to the December pay out. The value of sick leave
buy backs for future years cannot be accurately estimated, but for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, the County paid $ 168 to employees through this program.

7. Short-term g (Tax and ipation Notes Payable)

Each fiscal year, the County issues Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes to provide money to meet the General Fund's current year i and
indebtedness. The principal of the notes and the interest thereon is paid from pledged property taxes and other revenues the County expects to reoelve duﬂng the ﬁscal year.
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8. Long-term Obligations

In the ide financial and ietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabi in the applicable

activities, busi type activities, or ietary fund statements of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial fund types ize bond il and di as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Il. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A reconciliation of the total fund balances for governmental funds to the total net assets of governmental activities has been prepared as part of the basic financial statements,
including explanations of differences in Exhibit 3.1.

A reconciliation of the total net change in fund balances for governmental funds to the total changes in net assets of governmental activities has been prepared as part of the basic
financial statements including explanations of differences in Exhibit 4.1.

IIl. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

In accordance with the provision of Sections 29000 through 29132, inclusive, of the Government Code and other statutory provisions, commonly known as the County Budget Act,
bu ions a

the County prepares and adopts a final budget on or before October 2 for each fiscal year. Until the adoption of this final dget, re bya
budget approved by the Board of Supervisors.

An operating balanced budget is adopted each fiscal year for the County's General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Projects Fund. An operating
balanced budget is adopted each fiscal year for the Tulare County Redevelopment Agency, the Tulare County Flood Control District and the Tulare County In-Home Supportive
Services Public Authority (blended component units), which are governed by the Board of Supervisors and of which the Auditor-Controller is the ex-officio Finance Officer.

The Tulare County Public Financing Authority and the Tulare County Public Facilities Corporation do not adopt a budget.

A spending plan is adopted each fiscal year for the County's Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds, as well as the Terra Bella Sewer Maintenance District (blended
component unit) which is governed by the Board of Supervisors and of which the Auditor-controller is the ex-officio Finance Officer.

Public hearings are on the adopted budget and spending plans to review all appropriations and the sources of financing. Because the adopted budget for
governmental fund types must be balanced, any shortfall in revenue requires an equal tion in Al iations lapse at year-end.
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All governmental fund type budget units are adopted on the modified accrual basis of ing plans for y fund types are adopted on the accrual basis.
County department heads, with the approval of the County Administrative Officer, may make transfers of appropriations within a department without the approval of the Board of
Supervisors. Amendments or transfers between departments within the General Fund are approved by the Board of iati and

3 Y
normally financed by unanticipated revenues during the year must be by the Board of Supervisors. The legal Ievelrol budgetary control is the fund level, with the exception
of the General Fund in which the legal level of budgetary control is the level. amounts are reported both as originally adopted and as amended.

The Board of Supervisors made several budgetary appropriati the fiscal year, including ti propriations for new iti positions,
and unanticipated obligations. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, appropriations in the General Fund were increased by $8,691.

B. Excess of Over

For the year ended June 30, 2004, expenditures did not exceed appropriations in any fund at the legal level of control.

C. Prior Period Adjustments

In prior fiscal years, penalties collected against deli property tax were in agency funds (Teeter Funds) and recognized only when transferred to the

general fund. The agency fund was presented as a fiduciary fund. Due to a change of accounting policy, the County has combined these Teeter Funds with the general fund for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, resulting in recognition of $5,467 penalty revenue previously unrecognized.

In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the Utilities internal service fund expensed $4,127 paid for major energy management improvements to County facilities. The disbursement
is part of a projected $11,000 capitalizable project and should have been presented as Construction in Progress.

D. Deficit Fund Equity

As of June 30, 2004, two funds had deficit fund equity. The adjustment for the reduction in market value of the Investments in the Treasury Pool at June 30, 2004 resulted in deficit
fund equity for both the Structural Fire Fund and the Workforce Investment Fund.

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash and Investments

As provided by Government Code §53600, the cash balances of substantially all county funds and participating county schools and agencies are pooled and invested by the County
Treasurer for the purpose of increasing eamings through investment activities. Interest earned on the pooled funds is apportioned quarterly based on the average daily balance of
each participating fund. Certain funds, which have deposits in the County’s pooled investment program, do not receive the interest earnings on their deposits. The eamings on the
investments related to those funds are assigned to the County's General Fund, as i by Code. in the funds balance sheet (Exhibit
3) the i of assets i with the Tulare County Public Facilities Corporation (TCPFC) and the Tulare County Public Financing Authority (TCPFA), which are
not invested by the County Treasurer but are held by fiscal agents.

Cash Deposits. As of June 30, 2004, the County’s bank deposits had a carrying amount of $22,335 and the balance per the financial institutions totaled $21,067. All pooled cash
deposits and nonnegotiable Certificates of Deposit are entirely insured $545 or collateralized $20,522. The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and
loan associations to secure the County’s deposits by pledging government securities or first trust deed mortgage notes. The market value of the pledged government securities and
first trust deed mortgage notes must be a least 110% and 150% of the County’s deposits, respectively. The collateral is held by the pledging financial institutions trust department or
its agent and is considered to be held in the County’s name.
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Investments. The pool's cash and investments are invested pursuant to i policy gui by the County Treasurer. The objectives of the policy are, in order
of priority: preservation of capital, liquidity, and yield. Investment policy guidelines are annually updated and approved by the Tulare County Board of Supervisors. The Treasurer
also reports on a monthly basis to the Tulare County Board of Supervisors. Additionally, there is an Oversight Committee established under California Code § 27130 to §27137
comprised of Tulare County Officials, representatives from various pool participants, and members of the public, whose function is to monitor compliance with the County's
Investment Policy.  Investments made outside the County Treasury are invested pursuant to governing bond covenants or California Government Code provisions.

The County’s Investment Policy, in compliance with Califormia Government Code §53601 and §53635, authorizes the Treasurer to invest in the following:

(A) Obligations issued by the County of Tulare

(B) Obligations of the U.S. Treasury

(C) Obligations of the State of California and municipalities

() o ions of Federal Agencies or U.S. i
(E) Bankers Acceptances eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve Systes
(F) Commercial Paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's Corporation or P-1 by Moody's Commercial Paper Record
(G) Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

(H) Medium-Term Corporate Notes rated "A" or better

()  Mutual Funds

W) p and Reverse

(K) Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Cle ion I nts fodial it_Risk. In with the A Board 3, Deposits with Financial Institutions,
i i and Reverse the County's it have been ified into the following three categories of

custodial credit risk:

(1) Insured or registered, or securities held by the County or its agent in the County's name.
@ and I with ities held by the 's trust or agent in the County's name.
(3)  Uni and with ities held by the or by the 's trust or agent, but not in the County’s name.

The following schedule classifies the investments into the above noted categories to provide an indication of the custodial credit risk assumed by the County as of June 30, 2004.
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Investments by Category
1 2 3
U.S. Treasury Obligations. $ 74251 § -8 -
Federal Agency Obligations 243,681 - -
Municipal Obligations 5,747 -
Corporate Bonds and MTNs 48,181 - -
Repurchase Agreements - 21,000 -
Commercial Paper 96,878 - -
21,000 $ -
Other Investments:
Certificates of Deposit 7,823
LAIF Managed Pool 74738
Total Investments $ 570,297
Investments in the Money Market Mutual Fund, LAIF Managed Pool, and other il are not iz in with GASB No. 3, because they are not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The State Treasurefs Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a 00| and directed by the
California State Treasurer and is not regi with the and An oversight committee, comprised of Callfornla State officials and various
provide ght to the of the fund. in LAIF are hnghly liquid, as deposns can be converted to cash within twenty-four hours without penalty
or loss of interest. The value of the County's shares in LAIF that may be ized cost basis, which may be different from the fair value of the
County’s position in the pool. As of June 30, 2004, the County’s investment in LAIF is $74, 736 The total amount reoorded by all publlc agencies in LAIF at that date is
$57,536,996. Of that amount, 1.6 % is invested in non-derivative financial products and 98.4% in notes and t-bi
Repurchase Agreements. Repurchase Agreements are contracts in which a sells ities to the Pool with an to those
for a fixed price at an agreed-upon date. Government Code requires that California public entities thal utilize i that underlay the
repurchase agreements with amounts that exceed cost. The market value of the the gl must be valued a( 102% or greater. The Pool's
Investment Policy reflects this requirement.
Treasury Pool Income and Participant Withdrawals. Treasury Pool i are for in with the provisi of GASB 31, ing and Financial

Reporting for Certain Investments and for Extemal Investment Pools, which requires governmental entities to report certain |nvestmenls at fair market value in the balance sheet and
the statement of net assets and recognize the corresponding change in value of investments in the year in which the change occurred. The value of the participant's shares in the
pool that may be wi is i on an i cost basis, which is different from the fair market value of the participant's position in the Pool. The fair market value
fluctuates with interest rates, and increasing rates could cause the value to decline below original cost; however, County management believes the liquidity in the portfolio is more
than adequate to meet cash flow requirements and to preclude the County from having to sell investments below original cost for that purpose.
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As of June 30, 2004, the income ises of the
Investment Income

Interest and Dividends $ 15,061
Net (Decrease) in the Fair Value (11,200)
Less: Investment Expenses 916)

Total Treasury Pool Income $ 2,945

The net decrease in fair market value of investments during fiscal year 2003-2004 was $11,200. This amount takes into account all changes in fair value (including sales resulting in
a net gain of $2,119) that occurred during the year. The fair value loss on investments held as of June 30, 2004 was $ 2,295.

Summary of Cash and Investments Balances

Following is a reconciliation of the County's cash and investment balances to the balance sheets/statements of net assets for the Governmental, Enterprise, Intemal Service,
Fiduciary Funds, and the discretely presented component unit as of June 30, 2004:

Interal
Governmental  Enterprise Service Fiduciary Component Unit -
Funds Funds Funds Total
(Exhibit 3) Exhibit 6) Exhibit 6) Exhibit 9) Tulare County
Cash in Banks $ 570 § 238§ -3 7513 § 8319 § 72
Investment in Treasury 73,892 5,376 9,330 374,431 463,029 18,138
Investments 12,029 - - - 12,029 -
Imprest Cash 78 2 - - 80 -
Restricted Assets in
Treasury Pool 52655 43,071

Asem - 95728 -
§ 139,224 § __48,685_$§ 9330 § __381044 $_ 679,183 § 19,210
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Summary of total cash investments is as follows:
Investment in
Treasury Pool Other Total
Bank Deposits $ 15926 § 8471 § 24,397
Interest 3,699 - 3,699
Investments 510,613 59,684 570,297
Total $ 630,238 $ 68,155 § 598,393

The following represents a condensed statement of net assets and changes in net assets for the Treasurer's Investment Pool as of June 30, 2004:

Statement of Net Assets

Net assets held in trust for all pool participants
Equity of internal pool participants

Equity of external pool participants

Total Equity

$ 530,238
—_—
174,883

355,355

$

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Net Assets at July 1, 2003
Net in by pool

Net Assets at June 30, 2004

$

558,659
(28,421)

530,238

B. Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the County's individual major funds and for nonmajor and internal service funds are as follows:

Receivables:
Accounts
Property taxes
Lease payments
Notes
Due from other governments
Total Receivables

Nonmajor
Solid and other Noncurrent
General Waste Funds Total portion

$ 3691 § 553§ 258 8 6767 § 6767

12,808 - - 12,808 -

- - 1,717 1717 107

5916 5321 1,087 12,324 62

43,639 - 6,031 49,670 45,451

$__66052 § 5874 $___ 11356 §__ 83,284 §__ 52,387
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C. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets in the governmental funds include $47,655 in the Tulare County Public Financing Authority for future debt service and $5,000 in a capital projects fund for the
future clean up of toxic ground at the Harmon Field airstrip. Restricted assets in the business-type funds include $43,066 in the Solid Waste fund for future closure/postclosure
expenses for disposal sites, and $5 in CSA#2 for the future liquidation of water bonds.

D. Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue consists of two categories of revenue including 1) resources received before their use is permitted (uneamed) or, 2) amounts for which asset recognition criteria

have been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met, in that the amounts are measurable, but not available within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period (unavailable).

Unearned Unavailable
General Fund $ 25735 $ 6,673
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 4,509 3,729
Total Unavailable/Uneamed Revenue $ 30,244 § 10,402
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! E. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2004 was as follows:

Beginning Current Period Ending
! Capltal Assets - Primary Government Balance Additions Retirements Adjustments Balance
{ Governmental activities:
i Capital assets, not being depreciated:
' Land $ 8256 § s (18) § - 8,349
i Construction in Progress. 1,483 6332 (1,380) 4127
i Infrastructure in Progress 4,848 -
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 14,587 032 (1,398)
P Capital assets, being depreciated:
' Buildings and Improvements 163,262 411 ®)
| Equipment /Vehicles 41,203 3,826 1,187
1 Total capital assets being depreciated 204575 4237 (1,165 18
i Less accumulated depreciation for.
H Buildings and Improvements (36,802) (4,442) ] -
; Equipment Vehicles (26,500) (4,003) 1,081 19)
Total accumulated depreciation (63,302) (8,445) 1,069 19
! Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 141,273 (4,208 (96) [0
| Govemmental activities capital assets, net $ 155860 S __ 2624 § ({404) 5 4126 $
i
i
i
Beginning Ending
! Capltal Assets - Primary Government Balance Addiions ___Retirements Adjustments Balance
I Business-type activites:
! Capital assets, not being depreciated:
: Land s 6728 8 s -8 -8 6,728
Construction in Progress 41 a1 -
Total capial assets, not being depreciated 6,769 @i 6,728
| Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 13810 3,355 - - 17,165
| Equipment Vehicles 8,588 780 (45) - 9,323
‘Total capital assets being depreciated 22,398 4135 (45) - 26,488
| Less accumulated depreciation for:
; Buildings and Improvements (4,690) (517) - -
i Equipment Vehicles (8,545 (593) 4 -
! Total accumulated depreciation (11,13 (1,110 )
Total capltal assets, being depreciated, net 11,263 3,025 @)
Business-type activities capital assets, net: $__18032 § 3025 § @) s s
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of the primary as follows:

Depreclation - Governmental activities:

General govemment $

Public protection

Public ways and facilities

Health and sanitation

Public assistance

Education

Culture and recreation

Unallocated depreciation expense
Total depreciation expense - governmental
activities

850
5295
636
588
212

110
589

8,445

Depreciation - Business-type activities:

Solid Waste s
Nonmajor enterprise funds

Total depreciation expense - business-
type activities s

767
343

1,110

infrastructure projects

At year-end the County's commitments with contractors are as follows:

The County has active construction and other projects as of June 30, 2004 including the energy i system, the
Spent-to- Remaining
Capital Project - Active Construction Date Commitment
$ - $ -
Energy Improvement System 9,947 1,083
Orosi Substation 28 56
Playground Equipment 266 -
Three Rivers Rest Stop 21 -
Visalia Library 300 392
Roads:
Environmental review of existing roads 4,201 548
Road reconstruction 25 -
Pre-engineering for realignment of Dry Creek Road 220 -
Reconstruct and build culvert box - Dry Creek Road 698 -
Bridges:
Replacement of bridge 275 -
Review of existing bridge for possible replacement 18 -
Total C.I.P. $ 15999 §$ 2,049
_—
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The commitment for road and bridge reconstruction and environmental review is being financed by the State Transportation Improvement Program.

F. Interf i and Pay.

1. Advances to / from other County funds

Advances to/from other County funds are ive of it lending / i ing at the end of the fiscal year.

The composition of advances to / from other County funds balances as of June 30, 2004, is as follows:

Advances - Receivable Fund Advances - Payable Fund Amount
General ]l $ 325
Total $ 325

2. Due to / from other County funds

Due toffrom other County funds represents current outstanding balances between funds at the end of the fiscal reporting period. The County's computerized general ledger only
allows for the transfer of cash between funds until mid July following the end of the fiscal year. Therefore, the recording of interfund activity which occurred during the fiscal year, but
which is entered to the system after mid--July, results in an interfund payable / receivable.

The composition of due to / from other County fund balances as of June 30, 2004, is as follows:
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! Due To/From County Funds
4 Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
i General Nonmajor governmental $ 2,225
| Internal service 552
| Nonmajor enterprise 5
Sub-total 2,782
: Nonmajor governmental General 617
Nonmajor governmental 1,400
| Sub-total 2017
i JR—1 VA
i Solid Waste General 15,378
; Internal service General 370
i
‘ Total $ 20,547

G. Transfers

Transfers to / from other County funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 consist of transfers for normal operations, including the accumulation of debt service payments and
support of other funds resources.

The schedule of transfers to / from other County funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 is as follows:

‘ Transfors In:
Nonmajor _ Nonmajor _ wtwernal
] Transfors out: General PFC PFA govenmental  enterprise service Total Transfers
General $ -8 -8 -8 35763 § 3s 218 35,787
PFA - - - 1,223 - - 1,223
| Nonmajor govermnmental 46,183 8,887 4027 4,354 - - 63,451
Solid Waste 792 - - 102 - - 894
| Nonmajor enterprise . - - 1 - . 1
i Internal service - - - 225 - - 225
Total transfers out ~ § 887_$ 027_$ 41,668 $ 3$ 21§ 101,581
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H. Leases

Operating Leases (County as Lessor) The County, as the lessor, has entered into long—t ling lease leasing land and buildings to others. Leased assets
represent $2,007 (net of $1,239 accumulated depreciation) of the capital assets of governmental activities. The revenues realized for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 were
$785. The minimum future rentals for noncancellable operating leases are as follows:

Future Rentals

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount
2005 $ 281
2008 267
2007 267
2008 258
2009 259
2010-2014 486
2015-2019 38

Total $ 1,856

Operating Leases (County as Lessee). The County has i under long-t ing lease for facilities used in { These lease

provide for cancellation in the event the Board of the respective entity does not appropriate funding in subsequent fiscal years. The expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2004 were $5,490. The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Operating Leases
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount
2005 $ 4,286
2006 3,956
2007 3,709
2008 3477
2009 3,052
2010-2014 6,800
2015-2019 1,669
2020-2023 44
Total $ 26,993
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In addition to real property leases, the County has also entered into long-term leases for personal property, the majority of which is leased by Roads, Solid Waste, the District
Attorney’s Office, and the General Services division of the Resource Management Agency. Most of these leases also provide for cancellation in the event that the Board of
Supervisors does not appropriate funding, and are subject to annual adjt based upon iati Total rent and lease expense for these operating leases for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2004, was approximately $143.

Capital Leases. The County has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the isition of police i and other italized items; and
printing i These lease qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum
lease payments as of the inception date. The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:
Assets Aquired Through Capital Leases
Governmental
June 30, 2004 Activities
Equipment $ 508
Less: Accumulated depreciation (100)
Total $ 408

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2004, are as follows:

Capital Leases
Governmental
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004 Activities
2005 $ 169
2006 105
2007 17
2008 16
2009 ]
Total minimum lease payments 313
Less: amount representing interest (26)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 287
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Direct Financing Lease. The County has entered into a lease agreement as lessor for the lease purchase of the Dinuba Courthouse / Police Station by the Cny of Dmuba in March
1997. This lease agreement qualifies as a direct financing lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded as lease for
| uncollectible payments and net of interest. The net investment in this direct financing lease as of June 30, 2004 is $ 1,717. Minimum lease payments recelvable for each of the five
succeeding fiscal years and thereafter are as follows:

Direct Financing Lease Receivable

Fiscal Year Ending

: June 30, Principal Interest

i

i 2005 $ 107 § 103
2006 114 9%

' 2007 121 89

4 2008 128 82
2009 136 74

H 2010-2014 816 232

1 2015-2018 295 17

! — v —

| I. Short-term Debt

I Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes Payable. In accordance with the Resolution of Issuance, the 2003-2004 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note (TRAN) of $25,232 matured and
i was repaid with interest of $499 on June 25, 2004.

Beginning Ending
Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes ~ $ -8 25232 § (25.232) § -
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J. Long-term Debt

Certificates of Participation. The Tulare County Public Facilities Ct i s Ci

COP's are obligations of the County's component units. However, the County is indirectly obligated under lease agreements it has signed with its component units. The County's
obligation is limited to including in its annual budget, lease payments called for in the lease

amounts of principal maturing each year.

of

(COP's) to provide funds for the acquisition, construction and repair
and maintenance of major capital facilites. COP's have been issued for bmh govemmemal and proprietary activities. These COP's are reported in the proprietary funds if they are
expected to be repaid from proprietary fund revenues. In addition, COP's have been issued to refund earlier certificates with higher interest rates.

These COP's gt

C of icipation currently are as follows:
O of
Date Issued Purpose of Debt Interest Rates Amount
September 16, 1992 ‘Governmental activities - Refunding 275%-6.13% § 5,290
July 23, 1996 Governmental activities 4.30% - 6.00% 3
October 8, 1998 Governmental activities - Refunding 3.35% - 5.00%
Subtotal
September 2, 1993 Business-type activities 5.00% 523
February 23, 1994 Business-type activities 5.00% 76
August 16, 1994 Business-type activities 4.50% 55
September 14, 1994 Business-type activities 4.50% 46
May 28, 1996 Business-type activities 4.50% 910
Subtotal 1,610
Total $ 64,743

15

lly are issued as 20-year certificates with increasing
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for COP’s are as follows:

i
! Certificates of Participation
Fiscal Year Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
i 2005 $ 6,263 $ 3,186 $ 26 3 75
i 2006 6,570 2,884 26 74
2007 4,145 2,508 27 73
f 2008 4,365 2,208 27 i
\ 2009 4,580 2,072 28 70
1 2010-2014 24,945 6,118 166 327
! 2015-2019 12,265 723 208 284
2020-2024 - - 260 227
| 2025-2029 - - 325 160
) 2030-2034 - - 411 74
i 2035-2037 - - 106 5
t Total $ 63,133 § 19,789 $ 1610 § 1,440

Variable Rate Demand Bonds. On December 17, 1999, the Tulare County Public Financing Authority (TCPFA) issued Variable Rate Demand Bonds of $45,000 with a variable rate
not to exceed 12%. Each fiscal year up to $2,500 will be transferred to the County to provide financing for the acquisition and construction of public capital assets and repair and
| maintenance costs related thereto. A lease agreement in which the County is leasing four existing buildings to TCPFA is used as security for the bonds.

These bonds are treated as a long-term liability in accordance with GAAP as the County entered into a take-out agreement before the financial statements were issued. The take-
out agreement does not expire within one year of the fiscal period end. Neither the take-out agreement itself nor the obligations issued pursuant to the agreement are cancelable by
the lender within one year of the fiscal period end, and the lender is expected to be financially capable of honoring the take-out agreement.

These bonds are the obligation of the County's component unit. However, the County is obligated under the leaseback agreement it has signed with its component unit. The

! County’s obligation is limited to including in its annual budget the lease payments called for in this leaseback agreement payable from a pledge of the County's share of the Tobacco
Master Settlement Agreement. These bonds were issued with a final maturity date of August 1, 2034.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the bonds are as follows:
;
t TCPFA Variable Rate Demand
| Bonds
| Fiscal Year Governmental Activities
i Ending June 30, Principal Interest *
2005 $ 500 $ 2,529
2008 500 2,500
B 2007 500 2,471
i 2008 600 2,444
2009 600 2,402
: 2010-2014 3,600 11,457
| 2015-2019 5,000 10,211
i 2020-2024 6,900 8,390
' 2025-2029 9,500 5,713
i 2030-2034 13,000 2,603
i 2035-2035 3,100 30
Total $ 43,800 $ 50,750
| * Interest rate of 5.75% were used for this projection.

i Pension Obligation Bonds. The County issued Pension Obligation Bonds (POB's) of $41,460 on May 22, 1997, to pay the unfunded actuarial accrued liability at June 30, 1996.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the POB's are as follows:

! Pension Obligation Bonds
Fiscal Year Governmental Activities
Ending June 30, Principal Interest
{ 2605 $ 2445 $ 2,361
‘ 2006 2,860 2,173
! 2007 3,320 1,952
| 2008 3,830 1,696
i 2009 4,390 1,309
! 2010-2012 16,955 1,957
] Total $ 33,800 $ 11,538
|
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i Loans Payable. The County has borrowed funds for the acquisition of fire trucks, vehicles, computers and other equipment each year since 1996. The magnitude of these loans
! varies from $656 to $3,525 and the interest rates range from 2.9% and 5.48%. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, one additional loan of $993 was taken at 3.8% over four
| years. These loans extend to January 2009. In September 2002, the County borrowed $10,920 at 4.49% for energy |mprovemem projects. This loan extends to November 2017.

A tax ion loan dated 1, 2002 was entered into between the Califormia and Bank and Goshen Redevelopment. in
| January 2004, Goshen Redevelopment received this loan of $1,914 at 3.07%. This loan extends to August 2032.

The debt payment schedule for the following fiscal years ending June 30 is as follows:

Loans Payable
l Fiscal Year Governmental Activities
i Ending
| June 30, Principal Interest
! 2005 $ 2608 $ 677
1' 2006 2,074 597
! 2007 1,538 521
| 2008 1,067 464
! 2009 870 421
2010-2014 4,024 1,586
2015-2018 3,969 618

| 2019-2023 350 147
| 2024-2028 408 89
| 2029-2033 373 23
i 2033-2037 - -
i Total $ 17,281 §$ 5,143
|
|

Prior-Year Defeasance of Debt. In prior years, the County d d certain Certit of F ion (COP) by placing the proceeds of new COP’s in an irrevocable trust to

provide for all future debt service payments on the old COP's. Acmrdmgly. the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased COP's are not included in the County's financial

statements. At June 30, 2004, $ 43,390 of bonds ing are
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

i Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 was as follows:

! Beginning Ending Due Within
i Long-term Liabllities Balance Additions_ _Reductions Balance One Year
' Govemmental activities:
i COPs s 69,131 § -8 (5,998) § 63,133 § 6,263
) Variable Rate demand Bonds 44,200 - (400) 43,800 500
| Pension Obligation Bonds 35,870 - (2,070) 33,800 2445
| Loans Payable 17,655 2,908 (3,180) 17,281 2,608
Capltal Leases 359 73 (148)
' Compensated Absences 13,500 1,504 (1,783)
' Claims Payable 5,460 2604 (3122)
4 Governmental activities
Long-term liabilties s 186,174_$ 7.267_$ (16:698) $
|
Beginning Ending Due Within
| Long-term Lisbilities __Balance  _Additions  _Reductions __Balance _ __OnoYear
| Business-type activities:
| COPs $ 1637 § -8 @ns 1610 § 26
i Bonds 9 - ) 8 -
| Closure/postclosure costs 34,582 -
Compensated Absences 287
Business-type activities
Long-term liabilities s 36,515 _$
|

The liability for compensated absences has typically been liquidated using the primary governments governmental funds and the Solid Waste fund. The liability for claims and
i judgments payable has been liquidated using the General Liability Internal Service fund.

| Other Payables. El Rancho Sewer District, which is part of County Service Area #1, issued revenue bonds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1988. The bonds were purchased
by Farmers Home Administration. The proceeds of the loan were used for a sewer construction project. The original bonds payable of $11 has a current principal balance of $8 and
bears interest at 5% per annum. This matures in 2027, a 40-year period. The bonds were issued under Health & Safety Code §49000. The bonds will be redeemed with monies
| raised from service charges associated with the sewer system operation.
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the revenue bonds are as follows:

El Rancho Sewer Bond
Fiscal Year Business-type Activities
Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2005 $ - 8 1
2006 - -
2007 -
2008 - -
2009 1 -
2010-2014 2 2
2015-2019 2 1
2020-2024 2 1
2025-2027 1 -
Total $ 8 6
K. Special Assessment Debt
The County of Tulare is not obligated in any manner for special debt for the ing bond issues totaling $182,176 for School Bonds, 1915 Improvement Act Bonds,
and Special District General Obligation Bonds at June 30, 2004. The Tulare County Auditor-Controller acts as an agent for the Property Owners / Bond Holders in collecting and
ing the special with the ion of the Kaweah Delta Hospital Bond. The School Bonds totaling $125,842 include bonds for Buena Vista, Burton, Earlimart,
Liberty Ri Sundale, and y Schools, Exeter, Strathmore, Tulare Joint Union, and Woodlake High Schools, Cutler-Orosi, Dinuba, Farmersville , Lindsay,

Porterville, and Visalia Unified Schools. The 1915 Improvement Act Bonds totaling $199 include bonds for Ducor Community Service District, and Ducor CSD Supplemental. The
Special Districts GO Bonds totaling $51 are for Lindsay Hospital, Kaweah Delta Hospital Bond, Woodville Public Utility District Sewer.

L. Landfills

State and Federal laws and regulations require that Tulare County Solid Waste Fund place a final cover on its landfill sites and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions
at the landfill sites for a minimum of thirty years after closure. In addition to operating expenses related to current activities of the landfill sites, an expense provision and related
liability are being recognized based on the future closure and post closure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the landfills no longer accept waste. The recognition
of these landfill closure and post closure care costs is based on the amount of the landfills used during the year. The estimated liability for landfill closure and post closure care
costs has a balance of $ 33,713 as of June 30, 2004, which is based on an average of 28% usage (filled) of all landfill sites (remaining capacity since August 18, 1989). It is
estimated that an additional $ 51,456 will be recognized as closure and post closure care expenses between the date of the statement of net assets and the date the landfills are
currently expected to be filled to capacity. The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and post closure care ($85,169) is based on the amount that would be paid if all
equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain the landfills were acquired as of June 30, 2004. However, the actual cost of closure and post closure care
may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations.
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In addition, the County is required by State and Federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to finance closure and post closure care. The County is in compliance
with these requirements, and at June 30, 2004, investments of $33,713 are part of the pooled funds held by the Tulare County Treasurer. It is anticipated that future inflation costs
will be financed in part from earnings on investments held by the Treasurer. The remaining portion of anticipated future inflation costs (including inadequate earnings on
investments, if any) and additional costs that might arise from changes in post closure requirements (due to changes in technology or more rigorous environmental regulations, for
example) may need to be covered by charges to future landfill site users, taxpayers, or both.

Financial assurance for corrective action is required by the State Water Resources Control Board through the Regional Water Quality Control Board under California Code

Regulations, fitle 27, subchapter 2, Article 4, Sections 22220 through 22222. The funds are the financial ism for ive actions and are there to be used to

clean up or otherwise remediate a release (a.k.a. plume of groundwater contamination) from the County’s landfills. The California Integrated Waste Management Board (CIWMB)

specifies what annual inflation rate should be applied to the amount required for corrective action along with closure and postclosure maintenance at the landfills. The County is in
[ with these it and, at June 30, 2004, investments of $4,353 are part of the pooled funds held by the Tulare County Treasurer.

M. Restricted Net Assets

Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt is computed as follows:

Business-
Sovemmental, _Type _ Totdl
Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation $ 161,316 $ 21,014 § 182,330
Less related debt:

OP's (63,133) (1,610) (64,743)
Capital leases (287) - (287)
Loans (17,281) - (17,281)
Bonds - ®) ®)

[Total $ 5 $ 19,396 $ 100,011
_—

Net assets of capital projects funds ($8,926) are restricted by the State for the future clean up of toxic ground at the Harmon Field airstrip ($5,000), and by the Joint Powers
ing the di and use of p ds of the variable rate demand bonds ($3,926).

Net assets of special revenue funds ($13,817) are restricted by the funding source, usually State and Federal, for specific functions such as Roads ($4,853), Redevelopment
($8,896), and others ($2,394).

Net assets of debt service funds ($18,088) are restricted by lenders COP’s ($9,013), or by contractual agreements with trustees and bond holders ($6,884), or others ($179).

Net assets of busil type activities are by State landfill { ($5,000) or by with bond holders (CSA - $5).
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N. Condensed Financial Statements
The Tulare County Public Facilities C tion issued Certi of to finance its sewage and water projects. Both the water and sewer projects are accounted for in

three single funds. However, investors in the Certificates of Pamclpallon rely solely on the revenue generated by the individual activities for repayment. Summary financial
information for these funds is presented below:

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS Terra Bella
Sewer
Maintenance CSA#1 CSA #2
Assets:
Current assets $ 681 $ 377 $ 59
Restricted assets - - 5
Capital assets 1,644 5117 474
Total assets 2,325 5,494 538
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 16 56 2
Noncurrent liabilities 895 1,172 45
Total liabilities o11 1,228 47
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 734 4,455 428
Restricted - - 5
Unrestricted (deficit) 680 189) 58
Total net assets $ 1414 § 4,266 $ 491
—_— e
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CC STATEMENT OF Terra Bella
EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS Sewer
Maintenance CSA#1 CSA #2

Water and Sewer charges 138 § 320 $ 43
Depreciation expense (78) (222) (16)
Other operating expenses (149) (345) (32

Operating Income (loss) (89) (247) (5)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment eamnings 5 6 -

Special assessments 24 - -

Interest expense (41) (70) @

Change in net assets (101) @ @)
Beginning net assets 1, 4,577 498
Ending net assets 1,4 $ 4266 $ 491
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Terra Bella
Sewer
Maintenance CSA #1 CSA #2

Net cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities (14) $ ®)$ 10

Noncapital financing activities 24 62 -

Capital and related financing activities (56) (82) (3)

Investing activities 5 6 -

Net increase (decrease) (41) (20) 7

Beginning cash and cash equivalents 705 302 48
Ending cash and cash equivalents 664 § 282 $ 55

safe water systems (County Service Areas 1 & 2).
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V. OTHER INFORMATION
A. Risk Management
The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort claims from il ions losses, and i errors and issi damage to and des(ruct!on of
e

assets from theft, natural disasters, and other occurrences; and job related injuries to County employees. The County uses a
and i insurance pools with other counties to provide protection from loss. Premiums are paid into the insurance funds by all other funds and are available to pay claims, build
reserves, pay il it and pay the inistrative costs i with risk and claim administration.

Losses and incidents of potential loss are reported to Rlsk Managemenl After an initial assessment, a claim is established that includes a reasonable estimate of the ultimate cost
of the claim to the County. Excess liability is for ile, general liability, and non-medical. The self-insured retention for the Liability Program was reduced
effective July 1, 2003 to $250 from the prior $1 mulllon The self-insured retention of $250 applies to automobile, general liability, and non-medical errors and omission’s claims. The
purchased insurance for aviation and medical malpractice claims pays for all claim and expense costs in excess of a $10 deductible

Liability have not the self-i d ions in the prior three years. Expenses in the Mold Litigation have exceeded the self-insured retention and recovery is
being sought. The recovery from excess insurance during fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 is $393 and it is estimated additional recovery of $400 will be received by June 30, 2005.

The additional limits of excess liability insurance purchased in January 2003 were renewed for FY 03/04 maintaining total liability limits of $25 million.
Liabilities include an amount for estimated claims payable, including expenses, and an accrual for claims incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering the

effects of inflation, recent claim trends including and the amount of payouts as well as economic and social factors affecting claim values. The liability for claims
and judgments is reported in the insurance internal service funds

Property coverage is insured with a $10 deductible applying to real property and contents, |ndud|ng iles, and includes cost limits of liability. The Crime Bond
deductible is $25 and the Boiler and Machinery deductible is $10. Worker's compensation is a full statutory program and includes the funding for a Safety Officer and safety
programs. No deductible applies to worker's compensation losses.

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the last three fiscal years ended June 30 are as follows:

June 30, June30,  June 30,

2004 2003 2002

Claims Liability Total Total Total
Unpaid claims $ 5,460 $ 6,475 $ 5,997
Claims incurred 2,694 1,365 1,316
Claims closed - (1,603) -
Claims paid (3.122) 777) (838)
Total unpaid claims $ 5,032 $ 5460 $ 6,475
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The unpaid claims liability is reported in these financial statements as follows:

June 30,  June 30, June 30,

2004 2003 2002
Unpaid Claims Liability Total Total Total
Claims payable - current $ 3,051 $ 2,767 $ 2,573
Claims payable - noncurrent 1 3,902
Total unpaid claims liability $ 6,475

B. Risk Pool

The County is a member of the California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC), a California Joint Powers Authority. The purpose of the Authority is to
develop and fund insurance programs for its 53 member counties. CSAC Excess insurance Authority was formed in October 1979 and has operated without interruption since that
time. Each County appoints one member of the CSAC EIA’s Board of Directors to represent its County. The Authority operates public entity risk pools for worker's compensation,
comprehensive liability, property, and medical malpractice. The Authority also purchases excess insurance, actuarial services, and claims audits; and provides other services and
subsidies for its members.

The County participates in the following CSAC Excess Insurance programs. The current County self-insured retention level for each program is as follows:

Excess Insurance Program Self-Insurance Retention
Excess Liability $ 1,000
Property $10

Medical Malpractice $10

The County’s claims have not exceeded insurance coverage for each of the past three years. The relationship between the County and the CSAC Excess Insurance Authority
is such that the CSAC Excess Insurance Authority is not a component unit of the County for financial reporting purposes.
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Condensed financial information for CSAC Excess Insurance Authority as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, is as follows:

CSAC Excess Insurance Authority
Condensed Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2003
(amounts expressed in thousands)

CSAC Excess Insurance Authority
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Assets
For fiscal year ended June 30, 2003

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total Assets $ 156,824 Total Revenue $ 153,556

Total Liabilities Total Expenses 168,564
Claims Liabilities 143,329

All Other Liabilities 8511 Changes in Net Assets (15,008)

Net Assets $ 4,984 Beginning Net Assets 19,992

Ending Net Assets. $ 4,984

CSAC Excess Insurance Authority owns its office building. The building was purchased with assessments from the member counties. Each county shares in the equity of the
building in to the Tulare County's percentage equity in the CSAC EIA building fund at June 30, 2003 was 1.8073% of $1,567 for a total of $ 28.

C. Joint Ventures

A joint venture is defined by il Board No. 14 The Financial Reporting Entity as "a legal entity or other organization that results from a
contractual arrangement and that is owned, operated, or g by two or more i as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants
retain either (a) an ongoing financial interest, or (b) an ongolng ﬁnancual responsibility.” Aside from the County's membership in the California State Association of Counties (CSAC)
as described in Note V.B., the County also participates in six other joint ventures as follows:

San Joaquin Valley Library System The entity was established in 1970 as a result of a joint powers agreement among library jurisdictions in the San Joaquin Valley for the purpose
of reducing the costs of operations and improving services to the public. The County is responsible for staffing and minor purchases in support of the System. The County's
financial interest is based upon its percentage of contributions to the System. Independently audited financial statements can be obtained from the Fresno County Library, 2420
Mariposa Street, Fresno, CA.

TCAG was established in 1971 as a result of a joint powers agreement among incorporated Cities and the County for the purpose of
providing a fcrum for tha and air quality The County is responsible for staffing and for a pro rata share of operating costs.
Independently audited financial stalemenls can be obtained from the County Resource Management Agency, 5961 South Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, CA.
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Kings/ Tulare Area Agency on Aging KTAAA was established in 1980 as a result of a joint powers agreement between Kings and Tulare Counties for the purpose of spending Older
Americans Act and Older Californians Act monies in support of seniors. The County is responsible for a minimum of 79% of the required administrative match each year, but all
resources would revert to the California D of Aging. audited financial statements can be obtained from the County Health and Human Services Agency,
5957 South Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, CA.

Tulare County Service Authority for the Abafemenf of Abandoned Vemcles The Authority was established in 1991 as a result of a joint powers agreement among incorporated

Cities and the County for the purpose of vehicles deemed to be public nuisances. The County is responsible for the collection and

disbursement of authorized funds and meeting State repomng requwements for which the County receives 1% of the annual funds collected. The Authority has no resources other

than cash, which is distril i upon receipt. audited financial statements can be obtained from the State of California Controller’s Office, Sacramento,
CA.

Tule River Improvement Project The Project was established in 1998 as a result of a joint powers agreement between the Lower Tule River Irrigation District and the County for the
purpose of acquiring and maintaining entrance facilities and channels in order to provide flood control and water conservation. The Project's support costs are shared equally
among participants with specific project costs shared according to separate agreements per project. The County's interest in the Project is calculated based on contributions to
individual projects. Independently audited financial statements can be obtained from the Lower Tule River Irrigation District, 357 East Olive Avenue, Tipton, CA.

Lake Kaweah Enlargement Project The Project was established in 1999 as a result of a joint powers agreement between the Kaweah Delta Water Conservanon District and the
County for the purpose of constructing a spillway at Lake Kaweah in order to provide greater flood protection. The County is ible for 12% of fe costs of
the Project and retains a 12% interest |n the completed Project. Independently audited financial statements can be obtained from the Kaweah Delta Water Consarvatlon District,
2975F , F CA.

D. Subsequent Events
1. OnJuly 1, 2004, $ 30,000 Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRAN) 2004-2005 were issued at 3.5% with a re-offering yield of 1.67%, maturing on July 29, 2005.

2. On July 30, 2004, $10,749, representing a prepayment of the employer's annual retirement contribution was paid to Tulare County Employees’ Retirement Association

3. Effective July 1, 2004, the County elected to become self-i d for Worker's Ci ion per Board of Supervisors Resolution 2004-0242. It is expected to result in savings
of several million dollars per year.

E. Contingent Liabilities
Litigation. The Counly is a defendant in vanous Iawsuns Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the County Counsel, (other than

the claims included in section V. Other A. Risk even ion of these matters would not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the County.

In the opinion of the County Counsel, a large majority of tax assessment appeals will be withdrawn by the applicants or settled by a stipulation of value and the County's Tax
Assessor will prevail in the majority of appeals.

Termination Fee. The County is contingently liable for an early termination fee under a contract with ACS to manage the County's data processing system through the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2006. The termination fee is computed based on the level of services received and payments made by the County over a period of ten (10) years beginning July
1997. The early termination fee at the end of each of the next two fiscal years is $266, and $113, respectively.
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Program C: The County icij in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs, principal of which are the Family Support Payments,
Child Support C ity De Block Grants, Act, Justice and Local Public Works programs. These programs
are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors and audits conducted under the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the County expects amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

F. Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its a deferred ion plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all employees, permits them

to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available for death, or

The assets of the plan are held in trust for the ive benefit of the ic and their iari Since the plan assets are administered by an outside party in accordance
with Board No. 32, ing and Financial Reporting for Intemal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, these

assets are not included in the financial statements of the County.
G. Employee Retirement System

Plan Description. The Tulare County Employ i iation was It July 1, 1945, under the isions of the County Employ il Act of 1937
(Government Code sections 31450 et seq.). The Association operates as a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan with special funding circumstances and provides
retirement, disability and death benefits for qualified employees of Tulare County the Tulara Counﬁy Couds First 5 Tulare County and the Strathmore Public Unlity District. The
Association was integrated with Social Security in 1956. The by ber Board of The iation issues a separate
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Copies of the annual financial report may be obtained from me Tulare County Employees’ Retirement Association.

Funding Policy. Active plan members in the Association are required to contribute a percentage of their annual covered salary based upon age at entry into the plan and plan Tier.
Currently, General Tier | members contribute an average of 5.03% of salary. General members of Tiers Il and Iil contribute an average of 6.75% of covered salary. Safety Tier |
members contribute an average of 6. 19% of salary. Safety Tier Il and Il members contribute an average of 9.26% of covered salary. Due to a collective bargaining agreement, the
County has a legal obligation to 50% of the ibutions required for active Tier | plan members. The rates reflected above for Tier | members reflect the County “pickup”.
The required employer ibution rate for all ined in fiscal 2003-04 was 7.03% of total payroll.

Annual Pension Cost (APC). For fiscal year 2003-04, the County’s annual pension cost for the Association was $ 9,899, and the County actually contributed $8,048. The required
contribution for fiscal year 2003-04 was determined as part of the June 30, 2003 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method with the contributions

determined as a percentage of pay. The actuarial assumption included (a) 8.00% investment rate of retum (net of (b) proj salary of 5. 18%,
and (c) 3% cost-of-living adjustment. Both (a) and (b) include an inflation component of 4.25%. The actuarial value of the iation’s assets was sing a

that smoothes the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The Association’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability (or excess assets) is
being ized as a level of payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2004 was 8 years.

88



COUNTY OF TULARE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2004
in

The County’s annual pension cost and pension assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, were as follows:

Annual Pension Costs and Pension Assets

6/30/04*

*Current information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 is unavailable.
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Annual required contribution $ 8,048
Interest on pension assets (2,907)
Adjustment to the annual required 4,690
Annual pension cost 9,831
Contributions made 8,048
Decrease in pension assets (1,783)
Pension assets, July 1 36,344
Pension assets, June 30 $ 34,561
Schedule of Funding Progress
(dollars expressed in thousands)
Actuarial OAAL as
Accrued a%of
Actuarial Actuarial  Liability (AAL) - Overfunded AAL Covered  Covered
Valuation Value of Entry Age (OAAL) (8- Funded Payroll  Payroll (B-
Date Assets (A) (B) A Ratio (A/B) (C) A/C
6/30/01 § 574417 § 491228 $ (83,189) 116.93% § 142,970 -58.19%
6/30/02 612,469 561,377 (51,092) 109.10% 158,263 -32.28%
6/30/03 634,249 608,505 (25,744) 10423% 162,397 -15.85%
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f Three Year Trend Information
i Year

Ended Annual Pension Percentage Pension
¢ June 30 Cost Contribution Contributed Assets
: 2002 §$ 7302 § 6,186 84.70% $ 37,774
: 2003 6,309 4,879 77.33% 36,344
| 2004 9,831 8,048 81.86% 34,561

H. Trial Court Funding

Assembly Bill 233 (“AB 233"), which was adopted by the State Legislature in 1997 and became effective January 1, 1998, transfers responsibility from the oounlles to the State for
! local trial court funding commencing in the 1997-98 fiscal year. Under this legislation, the State assumed a greater degree of for trial court costs from fiscal
! year 1997-98 forward.

The County will continue to be obligated to provide court facilities for all judicial officers and support positions authorized prior to July 1, 1996. This includes those judicial officers
| and positions, which replace those offices and positions created prior to July 1, 1996. However AB 233 does not require that the County finance new capital facility expenditures
related to judicial officers and support staff required for any judgeships authorized during the period from January 1, 1998 to June 30, 2003. The County remains obligated to fund
capital expenditures with respect to capital needs of existing judicial officers and support positions located in several of its courthouse facilities.
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Assets
Investment in treasury pool
Investments
Imprest cash
Accounts receivable, net
Deposits with others
Due from other County funds
Due from other governments
Inventories
Prepaid items
Advances to Agency funds
Lease payments receivable, net of interest
Notes receivable
Restricted assets

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other County funds
Salaries and benefits payable
Deferred revenue
Advances from other County funds
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Imprest cash
Inventories.
Prepaid items
Advances to Agency funds
Notes receivable
Harmon Field cleanup
Debt service
Unreserved
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

County of Tulare
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Govemmental Funds
June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit A-1

Total Special Total Debt Total Capital Total Nonmajor

Revenue Funds Service Funds Projects Funds Funds

$ 20,026 $ 183 $ 4,030 $ 24,239

- 1 - 1

2 - - 2

2,092 - - 2,092

639 - - 639

1,657 . 360 2,017

5,944 - 87 6,031

211 - - 211

799 - - 799

40 - - 40

- 1,717 - 1,717

1,087 - - 1,087

- - 5,000 5,000

s 32497 $ 7,901 s 9,477 $ 43,875

$ 7,001 $ - $ 531 $ 7,622

3,609 . 16 3,625

1,139 - 4 1,143

6,516 1,722 - 8,238

325 - - 325

18,680 1,722 551 20,953

2 - - 2

211 - - 211

799 - . 799

40 - - 40

1,087 - - 1,087

- - 5,000 5,000

- 179 - 179

11,678 - - 11,678

- - 3,926 3,926

13,817 179 8,926 22,922

$ 32,497 $ 1,801 $ 9,477 $ 43,875
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County of Tulare

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeltures and penalties
interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Other revenues
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilties
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Education
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital outiay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures.

Other financing sources (uses):
Litigation proceeds.
Bond proceeds

Sale of general fixed assets
Capital lease principal payment
Loan proceeds
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1
Fund balances, June 30

Nonmajor Govermental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit A-2

Total Special Total Debt Total Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Funds Service Funds Projects Funds Funds
39,934 s - $ - s 39,934
1 - - 1
1128 - 1,242
228 34 712
- 194 47,608
- 2758
4672
228 96,924
4,586 - 1,615 6,201
27,407 - - 27,407
18,764 - - 18,764
782 - - 782
14726 - - 14,726
2424 - - 2424
- 4722 - 4722
2,742 - 2,760
512 1352
7,464 2127 79,138
25,681 (5,996) (1,899) 17,788
80 - - 60
- 101 - 101
1,913 - - 1913
25,515 14,926 1,227 41,668
(54,243) (8,887) (321) 63.451)
(26,756) 6,140 906 (19,708)
(1,074) 144 (993) (1,923)
14,891 35 9919 24,845
13,817 s 779 $ 8,926 s 22922






Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally
restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Indligent Heakth Fund - Thi
Proposition 99 monies per AB75.

- Thisfund i services,

Library Fund
and State funds.

Fish and Game Fund - This fund is used to account for improving the habitat for wi ! i i primary revenue is the C:
violations of fish and game laws within its boundaries.

Aviation Fund - This fund is used to account for aviation services to the public and agencies. The pr Y is taxes.
‘Structural Fire Fund - This fund is used to account for public structural fire protection. The primary sources of revenue are charges for services, ad valorem property taxes, and State funds.

- This fund is used primary f
the County's share of State highway users taxes, Yranspovuwn Development Act and Inwmodll Surface Transportation Eﬂldlﬂcy Act revenues.

Workforce Investment Act Fund - This fund is used to account for services providing training and employment opportunities for the public. The primary sources of revenue are State/Federal Grants.
Child Support Services Fund - This fund is used to account for the costs of administering Child Support services to families in the County.

- These State mandated funds were established to account for County match, sales tax revenues, and transfers toffrom the General Fund for certain mental health program
expenditures.

Health und - These funds. lished to account for County match, sales tax revenues, and transfers to/from the General Fund for certain health program expenditures.

- The 3 certain

Tobacco Settlement Revenue Fund - This fund was established to receive the County's share of the Tobacco Settiement Litigation Proceeds.

ive SSPA) - TCIHSSPA was established according to the provisions of the Welfare and nstitutions code Section 12301.6 to serve as
Gpores of ecar of Provders of I har supporive services or Burposes of 1 Meyers Mias Brown Act

Flood Control Fund - This fund is used to account for flood control services provided in the County. The primary sources of revenue are ad valorem property taxes, assessments, and State funds.

- These " \d- moderate-

ot oo 0 focers o st ‘grantfioan funding programs, which are used for and other ice projects within the area.



Exhibit B-1
) County of Tulare
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

une 30,
(amounts expressed in thousands)

| Indigent Fish and Structural Workforce Child Support
Health Library Game Aviation Fire Roads Investment Services
| Assets
! Investment in treasury pool $ 545 $ 1,091 $ 8 s 155 $ 1,846 $ 3710 $ 546 $ 2,033
Imprest cash - 1 - - - - - 1
Receivables (net, where applicable
of allowances for uncollectibles):
Accounts - - - . - - 77 -
Employees - - - - 2 - - -
Deposits with others - - - - - - - -
! Due from other County funds - - - - 257 - - -
i Due from other governments 164 - . - 146 2,153 213 -
; Inventories - - - . - 211 - -
. Prepaid items 139 - - - - - - 660
Advances to Agency funds - - - - - - - 40
| Notes receivable . . . - - . - .
! Total Assets and other debits s 848 s 1052 $ B 755 s 2,251 $__6074 $ 2,758
4 Liabilities and fund balances
1 Liabilities:
! Accounts payable s 515 $ 128 s - s 7 $ 2,206 s 2§ 2606 $ 836
Ove to other County funds - - - - - - 1
| Salaries and benefits payable 6 56 - - 51 300 155
Deferred revenue - 19 - - - 249 - 1,201
| Advances from other County funds - - - - - - - B
! Total liabilties 521 203 - 73 2,257 1221 2,761 2,694
i Fund balances:
i Reserved for:
\ Imprest cash - 1 - - - - - 1
| Inventories - - - - - 211 - -
Prepaid items 139 - - - - - - 660
Advances to other funds - - - - - - - 40
! Notes receivable - - - - - - - -
Unreserved
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Special revenue funds 188 888 8 82 ®) 4,642 @ (661)
| Total fund balances 327 889 8 82 6) 4,853 (2) 40
Total liabilties and fund balances s 848§ 1092, S & s 55 8 2251 $ 6074 2759 2734
|
Cont.

| 9
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Investment in treasury pool
Imprest cash
Receivables (net, where applicable
of allowances for uncollectibles):
nts

Enmy
Deposits with others
Due from other County funds
Due from other governments
Inventories
Prepaid items
Advances to Agency funds
Notes receivable

Total assets

Due to other G County funds

Salaries and benefits payable

Deferred revenue.

Advances from other County funds
Total liabiities

Fund balances:
Reserved for.
Imprest cash
Inventories
Prepaid items
Advances to mhsr funds
Notes receivably
Unreserved
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Sbecill revenue funds
fund balances
Total I|sh||hles al\d fund balances

County of Tulare
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

dur

ine 30,
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Health Social Services Tobacco TCIHSS Redevelopment
Realignment Seftiement Public Authority Earfimart
$ 3,327 s 64 3 - s 32 627
- - 2012 - .
- 1,400 - - -
- 621 - 150 -
- - - - 147
3327 8 2,085 2012 § 182 774
- s -8 - s 2 - -
1,400 2,085 - . . .
- - - 5 . .
1,927 . 2,012 - - .
- 175 - 2
3,327 2,085 2012 162 - 25
- - - - 147
- . - . 627
- - - - 774
$ 3327 0§ 2085 § 2012, § 162 774
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Assets
Investment in treasury pool
Imprest ca
Receivables (net, where appiicable
of allowances for uncollectibles):
Accounts
Emy
Deposits with others
Due from other County funds
Due from other govemments
Inventories.
Prepaid items.

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Due to other County funds

Salaries and benefits payable

Deferred revenue

Advances from other County funds
Total liabilities

Imprest cash
Inventories
Prepaid items
Advances to other funds
Notes receivable
Unreserved
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Special revenue funds
Total fund balances
Total liabities and fund balances

County of Tulare
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2004

30,
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Goshen Orosi Pixley Traver Richgrove Poplar

$ 77 $ 1628 § 28 s 85 231 s 155
1 - R . R R

639 - - . - R

499 - - - 7% .

378 335 81 141 1

$ 2,235 $ 1,958 $ 916 447 $ 156
s ® s 1 - s 9 s 24 s 1
- . - - 123 -

9 - 2 . 2

25 1 29 9 201 30

a79 335 1 81 141 1

1,831 1622 199 8268 105 125

2,210 1,857 200 807 248 126

s 2235 S 195 229§ 916 ar s 156

Exhibit B-1 (Cont)

Total Special

Revenue Funds

$ 20,026
2

11,678
13,817
s 32,497

Concluded
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Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovemmental revenues
Charges for services.

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilties
Heaith and sanitation
Public assistance
Education

Debt service:
Interest and fiscal charges

Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Loan s
Sale of general fixed assets

Transfers in
Transfers (out

)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1
Fund balances, June 30

County of Tulare

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit B-2

Indigent Fish and Structural Workforce Child Support
Health Game Aviation Fire Roads Investment Services
- 2168 § - s - s 599 S 2476 § -8 -
111 - 5 - - - - -
4 4 - 24 7 (23) 267 49
650 493 - - 501 14,356 12,752 16,327
- 64 - - 233 1,094 1,362 -
: 34 = - 33 15 PR | -
768 2763 5 24 6,778 17,918 14512 16,773
- - 6 - 10,575 - - 16,461
- - - 103 - 18,661 - -
782 - - . - - - -
- - - - - - 14,450 -
- 2424 - - - - - -
- - - - 41 707 - 21
762 2424 103 10,616 19,368 14,450 16,482
“7) 3% ) (79) (3,838) (1,450) 62 201
- . - . 60 . R
- - - - 3,486 317 - -
@) (95) - - (807) (150) (73) (251)
6} (95) - - 2,679 227 (73) (251)
(20) 244 ) (79) (1,159) (1,223) “n 40
347 645 9 161 1,153 6,076
327 889 S E) 82 s ® s 4,853

Cont.



Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Public protection
Public ways and faciliies
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Education

Debt service:
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Loan proceeds
Sale of general fixed assets
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1
Fund balances, June 30

County of Tulare

‘Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit B-2 (Cont)

Mental Health Health Social Services Tobacco TCIHSS Flood Redevelopment  Redevelopment
Realignment Realignment Realignment Seftlement Public Authority Control Eariimart Ivanhoe
$ 10494 3646 5 12983 § - s - s 43 s 210 s 8
- - - - - 5 3 1
- - - - 278 2 6 2
- - . 3918 - - - -
10,494 3646 12,983 3918 278 373 219 88
. . . - - 136 36
. . . - 365 - -
- - - - 276 - - -
- - - 276 365 136 36
10,484 3,646 12,983 3918 2 8 8 52
7,032 12,585 2,095 - - - - -
(17,526) 16,231 (15,078) (4,027) @ - - -
(10,494) (3,646) (12,983 (4,027) (2) - -
- - - (109) - 8 8 52
- - - 108 - 691 98
s - — s B - — s 1056 S 2 750
Cont




Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penil(lel
Interest, rents, and concessions.

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilties
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Education

Debt service:

Interest and fiscal charges
Capital O
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Loan s
Sale of general fixed assets
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1
Fund balances, June 30

‘Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

County of Tulare

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit B-2 (Cont)

Goshen Orosi Pixiey Traver Richgrove Poplar
$ 518 474 $ 180 $ 1 161 86
23 " 2 7 1 1
1,022 12 4 4 82 2
30 - - -
497 216 182 244 8
3,532 285 83 72 358 84 4,586
- - - - - - 27,407
. . - . - - 18,764
- - - - . - 782
. . . . - - 14726
- - - - - - 2424
285 8 72 358
(1,158) 212 133 110 (114) 5 25,681
1,913 - - - - - 1913
- - - - - - 60
. . - - - - 25,515
- - - - - - 54,243)
1,913 - - - - - (26,755)
755 212 133 110 (114) 5 (1,074)
1,455 1,745 67 797 360 121 14,891
s 2210 1957 8 200 s 907 246 126 13,817
Concluded
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Exhibit B-3

County of Tulare
Nonmajor Speclal Revenue Fund - Indigent Health Fund
of R and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
p in
Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Fines, forfeitures and penalties $ 122 $ 122 $ - $ 111 $ 1)
Interest, rents, and concessions 38 38 - 4 (34)
Intergovernmental revenues 1,051 679 (372) 650 (29)
Charges for services 16 16 - - (16)
Other revenues 4 4 - - (4)
Total revenues 1,231 859 372 765 (94
Expenditures:
Current:
Health and sanitation 1,405 1,033 372 782 251
Capital Outlay - - - - -
Total expenditures 1,405 1,033 372 782 251
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (174) (174) - 7) 157
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers (out) - - - (3) 3)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - (3) (3)
Net change in fund balance (174) (174) - (20) 154
Fund balance, July 1 174 174 - 347 173

Fund balance, June 30 $ - $ - $ - $ 327 $ 327
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County of Tulare
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Library Fund

Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Education
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
in

, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Exhibit B-4

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,054 $ 2,054 $ - 2,168 $ 114
13 13 - 4 ©)
490 488 )] 493 5
62 62 - 64 2
32 32 - 34 2
2,651 2,649 2) 2,763 114
3,284 3,214 70 2,424 790
3,284 3214 70 2,424 790
(633) (565) 68 339 904
- (68) 68 (85) @n
- (68) 68 (95) 27
(633) (633) 136 244 877
633 633 - 645 12
$ - $ - $ 136 889 $ 889

102



Revenues:
Fines, forfeitures and penalties.
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:

Public protection
Capital Outiay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

County of Tulare
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Fish and Game Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit B-5

Variance with Variance with

Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive

Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 6§ 6 $ -8 5 $ (1)
6 6 - 5 (1)

6 6 - 6 -

6 [ - 6 -
- - - (U] (]
- - - (V) (]

9 9 - 9 -
$ 9 $ 9 $ - $ 8 $ [0)
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Revenues:
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovernmental revenues
Total revenues.

Expenditures:
Current:
Public ways and facilities
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

County of Tulare

Exhibit B-6

Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Aviation Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ % § 26 s - s 2 $ (2
481 480 1 - (480)
507 508 1 24 (482)
522 695 (173) 103 592
174 - 17: - —_—
696 895 1 103 592
(189) (189) - (79) 110
27 27 - - @n
27 27 - B @7)
(162) (162) - (79) 83
162 162 - 161 (1)
$ s - $ — s 2 s 82
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Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Licenses and permits
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovemmental revenues
Charges for services
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public protection
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

County of Tulare

Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Structural Fire Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit B-7

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 5,685 $ 5,859 $ 174 5,939 $ 80
1 1 - 1 -
105 105 71 (34)
39 426 501 75
604 606 233 373)
208 211 33 (178)
6,999 7,208 6,778 (430,
11,353 10,741 612 10,575 166
33 (24) 41 8)
11,362 10,774 588 10,616 158
(4,363) (3,566) 797 (3,838) (272)
3,229 3,229 - 3,486 257
- 97) 79 (807 10)
3,229 2,432 (797) 2,679 247
(1,134) (1,134) - (1,159) (25)
1,134 1,134 - 1,153 19
$ E) - $ B © $ ©
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Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovemmental revenues
Charges for services
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public ways and facilities
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of general fixed assets
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

County of Tulare

Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Roads Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

Exhibit B-8

{amounts expressed in thousands)
Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,399 $ 2,399 $ - $ 2476 $ 77
152 152 - (23) (175)
18,734 18,734 - 14,356 (4,378)
1,234 1,234 - 1,094 (140)
10 10 - 15 5
22,529 22,529 - 17,918 (4,611)
28,969 28,887 82 18,661 10,226
384 439 (55) 707 (268)
29,353 29,326 27 19,368 9,958
(6,824) (6,797) 27 (1,450) 5,347
90 90 - 60 (30)
416 416 - 317 (99)
- 27) 27, (150) (123)
506 479 27) 227 (252)
(6,318) (6,318) - (1,223) 5,005
- 6,076 (242)

6,318

6,318

$ 4,853



County of Tulare

Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Workforce Investment Act Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovemmental revenues
Charges for services
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public assistance
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit B-9

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 400 $ 400 $ - 267 $ (133)
19,036 19,086 50 12,752 (6,334)
- 2,000 2,000 1,362 (638)
135 135 - 131 (4)
19,571 21,621 2,050 14,512 (7.109)
19,571 21,621 (2,050) 14,450 7171
19,571 21,621 (2,050) 14,450 7171
- - - 62 62
- - - (73) (73
- - - (73) 73)
- - - a1 an
- . - 9 9
$ E - $ - 2 $ @
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County of Tulare

Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Child Support Services Fund

Revenues:
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public protection
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Exhibit B-10

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
- $ 40 $ 40 49 9
16,827 17,042 215 16,327 (715)
25 25 - - (25)
10 405 395 397 8)
16,862 17,512 650 16,773 (739)
16,794 17,489 (695) 16,461 1,028
68 21 47 21 -
16,862 17,510 (648) 16,482 1,028
- 2 2 291 289
- @ 2) (251) (249)
- (2) 2) (251) (249)
- - - 40 40
$ N $ - $ - 40 $ 40
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County of Tulare
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Mental Health Realignment Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Exhibit B-11

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts ative)
Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments $ 11,442 $ 11,442 $ - 8 10,494 $ (948
Total revenues 11,442 11,442 - 10,494 (948)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 4,721 6,163 1,442 7,032 869
Transfers (out) 16,163) 17,605) (1,442) 17.526) 79
Total other financing sources (uses) (11,442) 11,442, - 10,494) 948
Net change in fund balance - - - - -
Fund balance, July 1 - - - - -
Fund balance, June 30 $ EE - $ BN} - $ -
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County of Tulare
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Health Realignment Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Taxes and special

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total revenues

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

Exhibit B-12

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 371 $ 3,033 $ 2662 § 3,646 $ 613
371 3,033 2,862 3,646 813
13,756 13,756 - 12,585 (1171)
(14,127) 16,789) (2,662 (16,231 558
(371 (3,033) (2,662) 3,646 613)
$ EE ] - $ ER ] - $ -
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County of Tulare
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Social Services Realignment Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit B-13

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments $ 12,655 $ 12,670 $ 15 $ 12,983 $ 313
Total revenues 12,655 12,670 15 12,983 313
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 470 1,009 539 2,095 1,086
Transfers (out) 13,125) 13,679) (554) 15,078) 1,399)
Total other financing sources (uses) 12,655) (12,670) (15) 12,983) (313
Net change in fund balance - - - - -
Fund balance, July 1 - - - - -
Fund balance, June 30 $ EE ] - $ EE 1 - $ -

1"



County of Tulare
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Tobacco Settiement Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit B-14

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
udgeted Amounts Positive Positive
m inal Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Other revenues s -8 - $ -8 3918 $ 3918
Total revenues - - - 3,918 3918
Other financing sources (uses):
Litigation proceeds 4,450 4,450 - - (4.450)
Transfers (out) (4,558) (4,558) (4.027) 531
Total other financing sources (uses) 108) (108) (4,027) 3,919)
Net change in fund balance (108) (108) (109) )
Fund balance, July 1 108 108 109 1
Fund balance, June 30 $ - . $ - $ -
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County of Tulare

Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Tulare County In Home Supportive Services Public Authority
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public assistance
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

Exhibit B-15

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
364 $ 398 $ 34 $ 278 $ (120)
364 398 34 278 (120)
364 398 (34) 276 122
364 308 (34) 276 122
- - 2 2
. . - @ @)
- - - @) @
— s - ] — s - $ B

13
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Exhibit B-16
County of Tulare
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Flood Control District Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

{J in
Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments $ 327 $ 327 $ - $ 343 $ 16
Interest, rents, and concessions 35 35 - 5 (30)
Intergovernmental revenues 22 22 - 23 1
Charges for services - - - 2 2
Total revenues 384 384 - 373 an
Expenditures:
Current:
Public protection 1,417 1,417 - 365 1,052
Capital Outlay - - - - -
Total expenditures 1417 1417 - 365 1,052
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (1,033) (1,033) - 8 1,041
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1 1 - - (1)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1 1 - - [O)
Net change in fund balance (1,032) (1,032) - 8 1,040
Fund balance, July 1 1,032 1,032 - 1,048 16
Fund balance, June 30 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,056 $ 1,056
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County of Tulare

Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovernmental revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Earlimart Redevelopment Funds
of and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

Exhibit B-17

p din
Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 204 $ 211 $ 7 $ 210 $ ")
13 13 - 3 (10)
80 85 5 6 (19)
297 309 12 219 (90)
531 533 () 136 397
531 533 [3) 136 397
(234) (224) 10 83 307
148 150 2 - (150)
(148) (160) (12) - 160
- (10) (10) - 10
(234) (234) - 83 317
541 541 - 691 150
$ 307 $ 307 $ - $ 774 $ 467
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Exhibit B-18

County of Tulare
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - lvanhoe Redevelopment Funds
of R i and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
p in
Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative;
Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments $ 57 $ 81 $ 24 $ 85 $ 4
Interest, rents, and concessions 3 3 - 1 )
Intergovernmental revenues - - - 2 2
Total revenues 60 84 24 88 4
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 106 110 (4) 36 74
Capital Outlay - - - - -
Total expenditures 106 110 (4) 36 74
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (46) (26) 20 52 78
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 44 47 3 - (47)
Transfers (out) (44) (67) (23) - 67
Total other financing sources (uses) - (20) (20) - 20
Net change in fund balance (46) (46) - 52 98
Fund balance, July 1 94 94 - 98 4
Fund balance, June 30 $ 48 $ 48 $ -8 150 $ 102
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Exhibit B-19
County of Tulare
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Goshen Redevelopment Funds
of R and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments $ 443 $ 449 $ 6 $ 518 $ 69
Interest, rents, and concessions 19 19 - 23 4
Intergovernmental revenues 2,590 2,592 2 1,922 (670)
Total revenues 3,052 3,060 8 2,463 (597)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 5,560 5,444 116 3,632 1,912
Debt service:
Interest and fiscal charges - - - 18 (18)
Capital Outlay - YAl T1) 71 -
Total expenditures 5,560 5515 45 3,621 1,894
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (2,508) (2,455) 53 (1,158) 1,297
Other financing sources (uses):
Loan proceeds 1,913 1,913 - 1,913 -
Transfers in 317 421 104 - (421)
Transfers (out) 317, (474) 157) - 474
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,913 1,860 (83) 1,913 53
Net change in fund balance (595) (595) - 755 1,350
Fund balance, July 1 1,026 1,026 - 1,455 429
Fund balance, June 30 $ 431 $ 431 $ - $ 2,210 $ 1,779
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Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovernmental revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

County of Tulare
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Orosi Redevelopment Funds

and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

in

Exhibit B-20

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 465 $ 471 $ 6 $ 474 $ 3
32 32 - 1 (21)
4 6 2 12 6
501 509 8 497 (12)
1,196 1,204 8) 285 919
1,196 1,204 (8) 285 919
(695) (695) - 212 907
395 424 29 - (424)
(395) (424) (29) - 424
(695) (695) - 212 907
1,428 1,428 - 1,745 317
$ 733§ 733 $ - 8 1,957 $ 1,224
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County of Tulare

Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovernmental revenues
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

Nonmajor Specnal Revenue Fund - Pixley Redevelopment Funds
i , and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the FISC3| Year Ended June 30 2004

in

Exhibit B-21

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 7" $ 156 $ 85 $ 180 $ 24
2 - 2 -
1 1 - 4 3
- - - 30 30
74 159 85 216 57
95 154 (59) 83 K4l
95 154 59, 83 71
(1) 5 26 133 128
56 115 59 - (115)
(56) 141) (85) - 141
- (26) (26 - 26
(21) (1) - 133 154
65 65 - 67 2
$ 44 $ 44 $ - 8 200 $ 156
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County of Tulare

Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovernmental revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Traver Redevelopment Funds
di , and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

in

Exhibit B-22

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative, Actual Amounts (Negative
$ 128 $ 167 $ 39 $ 171 $ 4
17 17 - 7 (10)
2 2 - 4 2
147 186 39 182 4)
418 421 3) 72 349
418 421 (3) 72 349
(271) (235) 36 110 345
28 101 3 - (101)
(98) (137) (39) - 137
- (36 (36) - 36
271) (271) - 110 381
702 702 - 797 95
$ 431 $ 431 $ - $ 907 $ 476
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Exhibit B-23

County of Tulare
Special Fund - Richg Funds
of R 3 and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
D din d
Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments $ 185 $ 185 $ - $ 161 $ (24)
Interest, rents, and concessions 5 5 - 1 @)
Intergovernmental revenues 982 982 - 82 (800)
Total revenues 1,172 1,172 - 244 (928)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,214 1,136 78 358 778
Capital Outlay - 78 (78) - 78
Total expenditures 1,214 1,214 - 358 856
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (42) (42) - (114) (72)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 240 240 - - (240)
Transfers (out) (140) (140) - - 140
Total other financing sources (uses) 100 100 - - (100)
Net change in fund balance 58 58 - (114) 172)
Fund balance, July 1 212 212 - 360 148
Fund balance, June 30 $ 270 $ 270 $ - $ 246 $ (24)
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Exhibit B-24

County of Tulare
Nonmaijor Special Revenue Fund - Poplar Redevelopment Funds
of R di and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
in

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes and special assessments $ 72 $ 85 $ 13 $ 86 $ 1
Interest, rents, and concessions 3 4 1 1 3)
Intergovernmental revenues 21 22 1 2 (20)
Total revenues 96 111 15 89 (22)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 122 137 (15) 84 53
Capital Outlay - - - - -
Total expenditures 122 137 (15) 84 53
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (26) (26) - 5 31
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 55 68 13 - (68)
Transfers (out) (55 (68) 13) - 68
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - -
Net change in fund balance (26) (26) - 5 31
Fund balance, July 1 119 119 - 121 2
Fund balance, June 30 $ 93 $ 93 $ - $ 126 $ 33
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Debt Service Funds

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources and
payment of principal and interest from governmental sources when the government
is obligated in some manner for the payment.

Pension Obligation Fund - This fund accumulates resources from other County funds for the payment of principal and interest on Pension Obligation Bonds; the proceeds of which were
used to pay an unfunded actuarially accrued liability for the fiscal year ended June 30,1996.

EquipmentLoans Fund - This fund receives transfers of resources from other County funds for principal and interest payments on various loans which financed the acquisition of vehicles
and equipment used in daily operations.

Bulidin, ns Fi - This fund receives transfers of resources from County building occupants for the payment of the County's lease obligations to TCPFC.



! Exhibit C-1
County of Tulare
Combining Balance Sheet
i Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Pension Equipment Building Total Debt
Obligation Loans Loans Service Funds
Assets
Investment in treasury pool $ 13 $ 165 $ 5 $ 183
Investments 1 - - 1
Lease payments receivable, net of interest - - 1,717 1,717
H Total assets $ 14 $ 165 $ 1,722 $ 1,901
i
! Liabilties and fund balances
| Liabilities:
E Deferred revenue - - 1,722 1,722
E Total liabilities - - 1,722 1,722
i Fund balances:
P Unreserved, reported in nonmajor
Debt service funds 14 165 - 179
Total fund balances 14 165 - 179
i Total liabilities and fund balances $ 14 $ 165 $ 1,722 $ 1,901
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County of Tulare

Revenues:
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Interest, rents, and concessions
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Capital lease principal payment
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

of R p
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
in d

p

and Changes in Fund Balances

Exhibit C-2

Pension Equipment Building Total Debt
Obligation Loans Loans Service Funds
$ - $ - 1,126 $ 1,126
1 - 227 228
114 - - 114
115 - 1,353 1,468
2,070 2,652 - 4,722
2,524 205 13 2,742
4,594 2,857 13 7,464
(4,479) (2,857) 1,340 (5,996)
- - 101 101
4,556 3,022 7,348 14,926
- - (8,887) (8,887)
4,556 3,022 (1,438) 6,140
77 165 (98) 144
(63) - 98 35
$ 14 $ 165 - $ 179
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County of Tulare
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund - Pension Obligation Fund

Revenues:
Interest, rents, and concessions
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Exhibit C-3

p in
Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Actual Positive
Original Final Negative) Amounts (Negative)
$ - $ B $ - 1 $ 1
4,655 4,657 2 114 (4,543)
4,655 4,657 2 115 (4,542)
2,070 2,070 - 2,070 -
2,522 2,524 (2 2,524 -
4,502 4,594 @ 4,594 -
63 63 - (4,479) (4,542)
- - - 4,556 4,556
- - - 4,556 4,556
63 63 - 77 14
(63) (63) - (63) -
N $ - $ - 14 $ 14
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Exhibit C-4

County of Tulare
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund - Equipment Loans Fund
of , and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
P in
Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Actual Positive
Original Final Negative) Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 2,866 $ - $ (2,866) $ - $ -
Total revenues 2,866 - (2,866) - -
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal retirement 2,736 2,736 - 2,652 84
Interest and fiscal charges 198 198 - 205 (6]
Total expenditures 2,934 2,934 - 2,857 77
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (68) (2,934) (2,866) (2,857) 77
Other financing sources (uses):
Loan proceeds 68 68 - - (68)
Transfers in - 2,866 2,866 3,022 156
Total other financing sources (uses) 688 2,934 2,866 3,022 88
Net change in fund balance - - - 165 165
Fund balance, July 1 - - - - -
Fund balance, June 30 $ - $ - $ - $ 165 $ 165
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Exhibit C-5

County of Tulare
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund - Building Loans Fund
of i and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
in th 4
Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Fines, forfeitures and penalties $ 1,687 $ 1,687 $ - $ 1,126 $ (561)
Interest, rents, and concessions 265 269 4 227 (42)
Charges for services 3,120 - (3,120) - -
Total revenues 5,072 1,956 (3,116) 1,353 (603)
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal retirement 5,998 5,998 - - 5,998
Interest and fiscal charges 3,270 3,270 - 13 3,257
Total expenditures 9,268 9,268 - 13 9,255
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (4,196) (7,312) (3,116) 1,340 8,652
Other financing sources (uses):
Capital lease principal payment - - - 101 101
Transfers in 4,008 7,214 3,116 7,348 134
Transfers (out) - - - (8,887) (8,887)
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,098 7214 3,116 (1,438) (8,652)
Net change in fund balance (98) (98) - (98) -
Fund balance, July 1 98 98 - 98 -
Fund balance, June 30 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Capital Projects Fund

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary and trusts funds.

Capital Proects Fund - This fund is used to finance the acquisition and construction of public buildings, including major maintenance and improvements. Revenues are obtained
from State funding and from other funds when allocated by the Board of Supervisors.



County of Tulare
Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund
June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Assets
Investment in treasury pool
Due from other County funds
Due from other governments
Restricted assets

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balance
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other County funds
Salaries and benefits payable
Total liabilities

Fund balance:
Reserved for:
Harmon Field cleanup
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Capital projects fund
Total fund balance
Total liabilities and fund balance
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6,000

3,926
8,926
9,477



County of Tulare
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Revenues:
Interest, rents, and concessions $
Intergovernmental revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30 $
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Capital
Projects




Revenues:
Interest, rents, and concessions
Intergovernmental revenues
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1
Fund balance, June 30

County of Tulare
Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund - Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit D-3

Variance with Variance with
Original Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive Positive
Original Final (Negative) Actual Amounts (Negative)
-8 - H - $ 34 34
- 3,926 3926 194 (3.732)
200 669 469 - (669)
200 4595 2,395 228 (4,367)
484 484 - 1615 (1,131)
5339 9734 (4,395) 512 9,222
5823 10,218 (4,395) 2,127 8,091
(5,623) (5,623) - (1,899) 3,724
1,200 1,200 - 1,227 27
(157) (157) - (321) (164)
7,043 1,043 - 906 (137)
(4,580) (4,580) - (993) 3,587
4,580 4,580 - 9,919 5,339
- s - $ - $ 8,926 8926
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Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the Board of
Supervisors is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where
the Board of Supervisors has decided that periodic determination of net income is
appropriate for accountability purposes.

Transit Fund - This fund is used to account for the operation, maintenance, and development of a rural transit system and transit related projects.

Mais - This fund is used to account for the operation, maintenance, and development of the Terra Bella Sanitation District governed by the County
Board of Supervisors.

Assessment District Funds - These funds are used to account for the costs of mait and of the L i Districts.

C i a Fi - These funds are used to account for the development, operation, and maintenance of clean and safe drinking water systems in rural communities of
the County.



Exhibit E-1

County of Tulare
Combining Statement of Fund Net Assets
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30,
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Total
Terra Bella County County Nonmajor
Sewer Assessment Service Service Enterprise
Transit Maintenance Districts Area #1 Area #2 Funds
Assets
Current assets:
Investment in treasury pool $ 291 $ 664 $ 139 $ 282 $ 50 $ 1426
Accounts receivable - 17 - 52 6 75
Deposits with others - - - 43 3 46
Total current assets 291 681 139 377 59 1,547
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets - - - - 5 5
Capital assets:
Land - 68 - 503 41 612
Buildings and improvements, net - 1,576 - 4,579 433 6,588
Equipment and vehicles, net 196 - - 35 - 231
Total capital assets (net of
iati 196 1,644 - 5117 474 7431
Total noncurrent assets 196 1,644 5117 479 7,436
Total assets 487 2,325 5,494 538 8,983
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 83 1 - 26 110
Due to other County funds - - . 5 - 5
Deposits from others - - 6 - - 6
Interest payable - - - 15 1 16
COP's payable - 15 - 10 1 26
Total current liabilities 83 16 6 56 2 163
Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances from other funds - - - 520 - 520
Bonds payable - - - 8 - 8
COP's payable - 895 - 644 45
Total noncurrent liabilities - 895 - 1,172 45
Total liabilities 83 911 6 1,228 47
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 196 734 - 4,455 428
Restricted - - - - 5
Unrestricted 208 680 133 189) 58
Total net assets $ 404 $ 1414 $ 133 $ 4,266 $ 491
—
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County of Tulare

Exhibit E-2

Combi X and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Total
Terra Bella County County Nonmajor
Sewer Assessment Service Service Enterprise
Transit Districts Area #1 Area #2 Funds
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 103 $ 138 $ 27 $ 320 43 $ 631
Total operating revenues 103 138 27 320 43 631
Operating expenses:
Services and supplies 850 149 7 342 32 1,380
Bad debt - - - 3 - 3
Depreciation 27 78 - 222 16 343
Total operating expenses 877 227 7 567 48 1,726
Operating income (loss) (774) (89) 20 (247) (5) (1,095)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Special assessments 634 24 - - 658
Investment earnings ) 5 - 6 - 8
Interest expense - (41) - (70) 2 (113)
Total ing revenues 631 (12) 5 (64) 2) 5
Net income (loss) before transfers (143) (101) 20 (311) [} (542)
3 - - - - 3
Transfers (out) (1) - - - - 1)
Total transfers 2 - - - - 2
Change in net assets (141) (101) 20 (311) (] (540)
Total net assets, July 1 545 1,515 113 4,577 498 7,248
Total net assets, June 30 $ 404 $ 1414 $ 133 $ 4,266 491 $ 6,708




Cash flows from operating activiies:
Receipts from users
Internal activity - (payments to) other County funds
Payments to suppliers
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Intergovernmental revenues
Taxes and assessments
Internal activity - (to) other County funds
Internal activity - from other County funds
Deposits (to) others
Advances from other County funds
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from Investing activities:
Investment earnings
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts recelvable
Increase (decrease) accounts payable
Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

County of Tulare
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit E-3

Total
Terra Bella County County Nonmajor
Sewer Assessment i Service Enterprise
Transit Maintenance Districts Area #1 Area #2 Funds

$ 103 i 136 $ 27 $ 317 $ 43 $ 626
(139) (38) - - - 77)

(702 (12 (1) (323) (33) (1177
gn_al) (17)1 20 ®) 10 (728)

94 - - - - %

634 2 - - - 658
[ - - - @ @)

3 - [ 5 2 16

- - - 3) - 3)

- - - 60 - 60

730 24 62 - 822

- (15) - (12) [ (28)
- (41) - (70) @ (113)

- (56) - (82) ) 141

3) 5 - 6 - 8

Q) - [ - 8

(11) 1) 26 (20) 7 (39)

302 705 113 302 48 1,470

$ 291 $ 664 s 139 $ 282 $ 55 $ 1,431
$ (774) $ (89) $ 20 $ (247) $ (5) s (1,005)

27 78 222 16 43

- @ - - - (2)

9 (1) - 19 [U) 26

3% 75 - 241 15 367

$ (738) s (14) s 20 $ 6) $ 10 $ (728)
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Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the County
and to other governmental units on a cost reimbursement basis.

Insurance Funds - These funds account for the financing of workers' ion to applicable ining units, g liability, property casualty liability, and malpractice insurances.
All other insurance functions are accounted for in the General Fund.

| S Fund - These funds account for central services, such as mailroom, motor pool, print shop, utilities, custodial and maintenance services, data processing, and
telecommunications, which are primarily provided to other departments of the County.






Assets
Current assets:
Investment in treasury pool
Accounts receivable
Due from other County funds
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Equipment and vehicles, net
Construction in progress
Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other County funds
Salaries and benefits payable
Interest payable
Compensated absences payable
Claims payable
Loans payable
Capital lease payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences payable
Claims payable
Loans payable
Capital lease payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for other purposes
Unrestricted
Total net assets

County of Tulare
Combining Statement of Fund Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit F-1

Insurance Central
Funds Services Total
$ 7,556 1774 $ 9,330
- 356 356
- 370 370
7,556 2,500 10,056
- 801 801
- 9,947 9,947
- 10,748 10,748
- 10,748 10,748
7,556 13,248 20,804
95 784 879
- 552 552
- 221 221
- 314 314
- 22 22
3,051 - 3,051
- 553 553
- 69 69
3,146 2,515 5,661
- 314 314
1,981 - 1,981
- 9,903 9,903
- 26 26
1,981 10,243 12,224
5127 12,758 17,885
- 197 197
- 972 972
2429 (679) 1,750
$ 2,429 490 $ 2,919
— =

138




County of Tulare

Operating revenues:
Charges for services - internal
Rents and concessions
Other revenues
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplies
Insurance premiums paid
Claims incurred
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Intergovernmental revenues
Investment earnings
ion of
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Change in net assets

Net assets, July 1
Prior period adjustment
Net assets, June 30

of and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Intemal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit F-2

Insurance Central
Funds Services Total
$ 16,090 22,134 $ 38,224
- 8 8
- 501 501
16,090 22,643 38,733
- 4,801 4,801
2,345 16,972 19,317
11,382 - 11,382
1,354 - 1,354
15,081 21,773 36,854
1,009 870 1,879
- 100 100
1 ®) 5
- (319) (319)
- (409) (409)
11 (634) (623)
1,020 236 1,256
- 555 585
- 21 21
- (225) (225)
1,020 587 1,607
1,409 (4,224) (2,815)
- 4,127 4,127
$ 2,429 490
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Exhibit F-3
| County of Tulare
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

|
i
|
!

Insurance Central
Funds Services Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
§ Receipts from users $ - $ 22,108 $ 22,108
t Premiums from departments 16,090 - 16,090
i Internal activity - (payments to) other County funds {1,468) - (1,468)
Receipts from rents and concessions - 8 8
i Other revenues - 17 m
i Payments to employees - (4,562) (4,562)
i Payments to suppliers (13,031) (16,261) (29,292)
| Payments for claims (1,782) - (1,782)
_‘ Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 191) 1,464 1,273

H Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
{ Intergovernmental revenues - 100 100
Internal activity - (to) other County funds - (586) (586)
Internal activity - from other County funds - 573 573
| Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities - 87 87
; Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
| Acquisition (disposal) of fixed assets - (5,840) (5,840)
| Principal paid on capital debt - (533) (533)
! Interest paid on capital debt - (563) (563)
! Net cash provided (used) by capital and related

| financing activities - (6,936) (6,936)

1 Cash flows from investing activities:
! Investment earnings 1 (6) 5
Net cash provided by investing activities 11 (6) 5
| Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (180) (5,391) (5,571)
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 7,736 7,165 14,901
| Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 $ 7,556 $ 1,774 $ 9,330

140



Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in salaries and benefits
payable and compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in claims payable
Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Non cash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets from government
Assumption of compensated absences
Initiation of capital lease purchase

141

1,009 870 1,879
72 730 “2)

N (356) (356)

- 220 220
(428) - (428)
(1,200) 504 (606)
(191) 1,464 1,273
- 555 555

- (319) (319)

. 42 42






-

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds include all Investment Trust and Agency Funds.

Investment Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee
capacity. External pool participants include local School Districts, Special Districts
not included as component units of the County, and the Tulare County Employee
Retirement Agency which maintains a check- clearing account in the Treasury Pool.

Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of
operations. Such funds have no equity accounts since all assets are due to
individuals or entities at some future time. Agency funds are used to account for
assets held by the County as an agent for individuals, private organizations, and other
governments.

Property Tax and Funds - These funds account for property taxes collected and for the apportionment of taxes to the State, the County and others.

State Fines Agency Funds - These funds are used as a clearing fund for penalties, fines, and assessments collected and payable to the State.

Tran: Fun - These funds account for the one-quarter of one percent sales tax collected by the State Board of Equalization and deposited with the County of origin
for local transportation support.

Employee Health Benefits Fund - This fund is used to accumulate premium payments for health, dental, vision, life, long term disability, and voluntary products collected from
employees, retired employees, and Special District employees for distribution to providers.

R Al n Fund (ERAF) - This fund is used to collect tax revenues shifted from counties, cities, special districts, and redevelopment agencies to augment
loss of State funding to local schools.

Other Agency Funds - These funds account for monies held as agent for a variety of purposes.



Exhibit G-1

County of Tulare
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2004
in
Balance Balance
July 1 Additions D { June 30
Property Tax Collection and Apportionment Funds
Assets:
Cash in banks $ 729 $ 217 $ - $ 946
Investment in treasury pool 7,803 190,008 (191,672) 6,139
Receivables 14,619 178,961 190,008) * 3,572
Total assets $ 23,151 $ 369,186 $ (381,680) $ 10,657
Liabilities:
Warrants payable $ 219 $ 570 $ (219) $ 570
Due to County funds - 3,346 - 3,346
Note payable 12,322 - (12,322) -
Agency obligations 10,610 365,270 369,139) 6,741
Total liabilities $ 23,151 $ 369,186 $ 381,680) $ 10,657
State Fines Agency Funds
Assets:
Investment in treasury pool $ 688 $ 4178 $ (4,387) $ 479
Total assets $ 688 $ 4,178 $ (4,387) $ 479
Liabilities:
Agency obligations $ 688 $ 4,178 $ (4,387) $ 479
Total liabilities $ 688 $ 4,178 $ (4,387) $ 479
* Note: D ions in i in Property Tax Collection and Appropriation Funds include the reclassification of $12,806 to the general fund.
Cont.
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Exhibit G-1 (Cont.)
! County of Tulare
{ Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2004
din th

! Balance Balance
{ July 1 Additions Deductions June 30
Transportation Tax Funds
1 Assets:
Investment in treasury pool $ 513 $ 9,897 $ (9,801) $ 609
H Total assets $ 513 $ 9,897 $ (9,801) $ 609
4 Liabilities:
Agency obligations $ 513 $ 9,897 $ (9,801) $ 609
Total liabilities $ 513 $ 9,897 $ (9,801) $ 609
|
| Employee Health Benefits Fund
Assets:
Investment in treasury pool $ 1,494 $ 21,690 $ (22,584) $ 600
B Receivables - 40 - 40
i Total assets $ 1,494 $ 21,730 $ (22,584) $ 640
Liabilities:
Warrants payable $ - $ 152 $ - $ 152
Due to County funds - 30 - 30
' Agency obligations 1,494 21,548 (22,584) 458
! Total liabilities $ 1,494 $ 21,730 $ (22,584) $ 640
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Assets:
Investment in treasury pool
Total assets

Liabilities:
Agency obligations
Total liabilities

Other Agency Funds

Assets:
Cash in banks
Investment in treasury pool
Advances to County funds
Total assets

Liabilities:
Warrants payable
Advances from County funds
Agency obligations
Total liabilities

Fund

Balance Balance
July 1 Additions Deductions June 30
$ 39 42,137 $ (42,087) $ 89
$ 39 42,137 $ (42,087) $ 89
$ 39 42,137 $ (42,087) $ 89
$ 39 42,137 $ (42,087) $ 89
$ 5,848 719 $ N $ 6,567
9,585 48 - 9,633
460 60 - 520
$ 15,893 827§ -8 16,720
$ 1,106 2,424 $ (1,106) $ 2,424
500 60 - 560
14,287 - (551) 13,736
$ 15,893 2,484 $ (1,657) $ 16,720
Cont.
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Total Agency Funds

Assets:
Cash in banks
Investment in treasury pool
Receivables
Advances to County funds
Total assets

Liabilities:
Warrants payable
Due to County funds
Advances from County funds
Note payable
Agency obligations
Total liabilities

County of Tulare

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2004

in

Balance

July 1 Additions Deductions
$ 6,577 936 $ -
20,122 267,958 (270,531)
14,619 179,001 (190,008)
460 60 -
$ 41,778 447,955 $ (460,539)
$ 1,325 3,146 $ (1,325)
- 3,376 -
500 60 -
12,322 - (12,322)
27,631 443,030 448,549)
$ 41,778 449,612 $ (462,196)
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$

$

Balance
June 30

7,513

3,146
3,376
560

22,112
29,194

Concluded



Capital Assets Used in the Operation of
Governmental Funds

These schedules report capital assets acquired for general government operations.
These capital assets are tangible and of significant value having a utility which
extends beyond the current year. They are broadly classified as land, structures and
improvements, machinery and equipment, vehicles, infrastructure and constructionin
progress.




County of Tulare

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Comparative Schedule by Source
June 30, 2004 and 2003
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental funds capital assets:
Land
Structures and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Construction in progress
Infrastructure in progress
Total governmental funds capital assets

Investment in governmental funds capital assets by source:
General fund
Federal revenue sharing fund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Redevelopment funds
Donations
Total governmental funds capital assets
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2004 2003
8,349 8,256
163,685 163,282
7,219 7,650
34,251 33,457
615 1,483
5,437 4,848
219,556 218,976
177,824 176,811
12,286 12,443
28,075 27,546
615 1,483
299 236
457 457
219,556 218,976




Exhibit H-2

County of Tulara
Schedule by Function and Activity
June 004
| (amounts expressed in thousands)
|
! Structures and Machinery
i Function and Activi Lend Intrastructure Vehicies Totsl
General government:
Administrative s - $ - s 25 s 10 s - s 35
Finance . - - 428 181 589
County Counsel - - 1,663 28 - 1691
Personnel - - 25 - - 25
Elections - - - 563 - 563
Property management - - 2762 - - 2,762
Other general 2382 - 721 39 5,247 8,389
Total general government 2382 = 5196 1,088 408 14,054
Public protection:
idicial 6 - 38,395 1,191 1,490 41,082
Sheriff 639 - 940 950 4,164 6,702
Other protection 104 259 260 623
Totel public protection 545 39,430 2,408 914 4407
Detention and correction:
Detention - - 72142 518 210 72,870
Fire 146 - 2,982 mn 7,539 10838
Inspection 210 - 4685 108 %0 5704
Total detention and correction 356 79,808 798 8,449 89,412
Public ways and facilities 1,018 - 2,180 T 9,896 13,871
‘ublic health 2834 - 25693 1,156 1,847 31,330
Public assistance 226 - 3,504 769 2,083 6,552
Education 122 - 3526 o7 477 4222
Recreation and cultural services 966 - 4,338 145
39,241 2,944 14,480 61,631
Total s - s 163,685 s 7,219 s 34,251 213,504
B - -8 815 s - $ - 615
- 5,437 - - N 5,437




County of Tulare
Capital Assets Used in the Operation

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(amounts expressed in thousands)

of Govemmental Funds

Exhibit H-3

Governmental
Governmental Fund Fund Capital
Function and Activity Capital Assets July 1 Additions Deletions Adjustments Assets June 30
General government:
Administrative $ R $ 35 $ - $ - $ 35
Finance 498 91 - - 589
County Counsel 1,691 - - - 1,691
Personnel 25 - - - 25
Elections 554 9 - - 563
Property management 2,902 - - (140) 2,762
Other general 10,873 42 (5 1,932) 8,389
Total general government 16,543 * 177 (594) (2,072) 14,054
Public protection:
Judicial 40,995 116 (29) - 41,082
Sheriff 5,108 1677 (83) - 6,702
Other protection 588 42 - @ 623
Total public protection 46,691 * 1,835 (112) [0) 48,407
Detention and correction:
Detention 72,877 21 (28) - 72,870
Fire 10,782 4“1 (13) 28 10,838
Inspection 5,743 12 (51 - 5,704
Total detention and correction 89,402 * 74 (92) 28 89,412
Public ways and facilities 13,865 189 (217) 34 13,871
Public health 31,029 431 (120) (10) 31,330
Public assistance 5,154 1437 (39) - 6,552
Education 4,231 - ©) - 4,222
Recreation and cultural services 5,730 144 - (218) 5,656
80,009 * 2,201 (385) (194) 61,631
Construction/ projects in progress 1,483 512 (1,380) . 615
Infrastructure projects in progress 4,848 589 - - 5,437
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 218,976 $ 5,388 $ 2,563 $ (2,245) $ 219,556

* With the implementation of a new capital asset system, a review of asset use resulted in the reclassification of some capital assets. Balances at July 1, 2003 have been
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)






i
!

(amounts expressed in thousands)

County of Tulare
Govemment-wide Expenses by Function
Last Three Fiscal Years

Table 1

BUSINESS-TYPE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
General Public Ways Unallocated Solid Other
Govemn- Public and Health and Public Culture & Unallocated Interest Waste Business
Fiscal Year ment Protection Facllities Sanitation Assistance | Education | Recreation Depreciation Expense Management A‘g’pno‘“ Total
2001-02 25,529 132,758 18,321 82,382 201,975 3,380 1,661 571 9,933 8,980 1,543 487,033
2002-03 37,409 130,282 18,699 87,856 202,308 3,481 1,839 627 9,023 10,361 1,873 503,758
200304 | 32816 | 145513 | 19411 | 86955 | 202481 | 3356 | 1949 589 8,220 12,967 1839 | 516,00

* Discretely presented Component unit not included
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County of Tulare
Government-wide Revenues by Source
Last Three Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Table 2

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
PROGRAM REVENUES GENERAL REVENUES
Grants and
Charges Contributions Not Unrestricted
Fiscal for Operating Grants and to
Year Services Contributions Taxes Programs Earnings Miscellaneous Total
2001-02 81,083 323,617 42,506 34,901 11,410 5,708 499,225
2002-03 96,213 316,985 44,903 36,829 9,260 4,133 508,323
2003-04 100,136 322,369 48,632 33,611 3,383 11,344 519,475

* Discretely presented Component unit not included

163



|
|
|

County of Tulare
General Governmental

Expenditures by Function - Table

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Table 3

General Public Public Ways | Health and Public Culture & Debt Capital
Fiscal Year | Government Protection | and Facilities itatic il Service Outlay Total
1994-95 $19,149 $74,704 $11,249 $45,997 $186,023 $2,277 $1,213 $1,648 $0 $342,260
1995-96 21,160 86,760 11,799 52,904 182,942 2,675 1,397 1,647 0 361,284
1996-97 25,836 87,755 13,579 53,131 172,143 2,522 1,331 2,884 0 359,181
1997-98 21,394 95,716 13,780 67,732 168,622 2,623 1,505 3,271 0 364,643
1998-99 19,275 112,997 15,172 61,646 175,251 2,729 1,390 2,153 0 390,613
1999-00 16,241 121,120 14,868 66,650 177,934 3,473 1,448 180 0 401,914
2000-01 11,973 135,775 19,617 76,518 191,993 3,439 1,507 261 0 441,083
2001-02 20,603 127,337 20,229 80,812 200,765 3,129 1,578 2,552 4,226 461,231
2002-03 22,476 123,937 17,958 86,567 201,211 3,200 1,759 897 6,374 464,370
2003-04 21,549 139,512 18,764 86,165 201,839 3,370 1,831 1,009 3,506 477,545
Notes: Includes General and Special Revenue Funds including Blended Component Units.

Expenditures are reported on a modified accrual basis (GAAP).



o el e

County of Tulare
General Governmental
Expenditures by Function - Graph
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Graph 3

$$ Thousands

General Governmental Expenditures by Function
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Table 4
County of Tulare
General Governmental
Revenues by Source - Table
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Taxes and Fines, Interest, Rents
FicaYear | gty | Upmenend | Fatetu | [ | O | e | om
1994-95 $38,800 $5,102 $1,396 $4,542 $265,175 $23,241 $6,466 $344,722
1995-96 65,811 5,199 2,643 3,348 253,971 29,392 8,474 368,838
1996-97 66,898 5,157 2,996 7,413 243,460 33,572 7375 366,871
1997-98 66,436 5474 5,544 3,933 246,557 36,468 7,266 371,678
1998-99 67,001 5,836 6,725 3,960 257,048 42,213 6,420 389,203
1999-00 69,993 5,561 7,138 3,006 274,609 42,785 4,965 408,057
2000-01 M7 6,096 5,234 5,544 306,645 52,245 9,487 456,968
2001-02 71,246 6,843 6,528 4,392 328,165 52,025 9,665 478,864
2002-03 71,269 6,920 7,164 3,860 326,699 53,662 10,724 480,298
2003-04 77,573 7,214 6,842 1,658 323,445 57,450 10,370 484,552

Note: Includes General and Special Revenue Funds including Blended Component Units.
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County of Tulare
General Governmental
Revenues by Source - Graph
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

General Governmental Revenues by Source 7
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County of Tulare

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Table 5

Current Delinquent
FicalYour | Texiow Comections | JForoentol | poinquantTaxen | Teienasol | Prior Delnauert
1994-95 $116,851 $112,334 96% $4,517 4% $5,547
1995-96 122,046 117,479 96 4,568 4 4,532
1996-97 125,984 121,891 97 4,093 3 4,718
1997-98 130,632 126,442 97 4,190 3 7331
1998-99 135,775 131,534 97 4,240 3 7,465
1999-00 140,642 136,380 97 4,262 3 5,756
2000-01 149,307 144,161 97 5,146 3 6,931
2001-02 154,682 149,897 97 4,785 3 5,966
2002-03 162,726 157,372 97 5,354 3 5,578
2003-04 168,089 162,792 97 5,297 3 7,167
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County of Tulare
Equalized Roll Assessed Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

p

in

Table 6

Fiscal Year Real Property Assessed Value | Fersonal Property Assessed Total Assessed Value
1994-95 $11,914,650 $690,693 $12,605,343
1995-96 12,425,110 741,639 13,166,749
1996-97 12,719,639 802,996 13,522,635
1997-98 13,220,599 859,125 14,079,724
1998-99 13,646,997 917,125 14,564,122
1999-00 14,154,136 941,827 15,095,963
2000-01 14,731,050 1,065,525 15,796,575
2001-02 15,232,365 1,064,889 16,297,254
2002-03 16,004,259 1,150,562 17,154,821
2003-04 16,984,360 1,061,432 18,035,792

Due to Constitutional Amendment, Section 13A, property is assessed at Full Cash Value as of 1975-76 with a of 2% p d

each year. New construction and property sold are reassessed at Full Cash Value in the year the transaction occurs.

159




i
i

County of Tulare

Property Tax Rates (A)-Direct & Overlapping Governments

(Per $100 of Assessed Value)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 7

Fiscal Year M?;;iaclgg'?';;g:te County of Tulare School Districts Special Districts Cities Total
1994-95 1.00 - 0.04 - - 1.04
1995-96 1.00 - 0.03 - - 1.03
1996-97 1.00 - 0.01 - - 1.01
1997-98 1.00 - 0.01 - - 1.01
1998-99 1.00 - 0.01 - - 1.01
1999-00 1.00 - 0.07 - - 1.07
2000-01 1.00 - 0.07 - - 1.07
2001-02 1.00 - 0.06 - - 1.06
2002-03 1.00 - 0.07 - - 1.07
2003-04 1.00 - 0.06 - - 1.06

A

(B)

Each tax rate area within the County will have differing tax rates depending on which taxing agencies are located within that tax rate

area. For comparison purposes, only one tax rate area with its corresponding tax rate is shown in this Schedule.

Effective 1978-79, Constitutional Amendment XIIIA was enacted by vote of the people. This amendment mandates one rate for all
taxing agencies, with $1.00 per $100 of value. Bonded indebtedness existing before July 1, 1978 was exempted from the amendment
and may have an additional tax rate.
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(A)

(B)

(©)

Table 8

County of Tulare
Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 2004

in

(]

Net Assessed Value $19,016,907
Debt Limit - 1.25 Percent of Taxable Property (A) 237,711
Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit (B) -0
Legal Debt Margin (C) 237,711

Constitutional Amendment XIIIA, passed by vote of the people and
effective July 1, 1978, prohibits the County from raising ad valorem
property taxes above 1% of full cash value. Thus, the legal debt

is 1.25% of assessed valuation.

As of 6/30/04 the County had no tax supported general obligation
bonded debt outstanding.

Legal debt margin is computed by subtracting the County legal general
obligation bonded debt from the legal debt limit.
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County of Tulare
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
June 30, 2004
p in

Table 9

Percentage Applicable to the

Amount Applicable to the County

Jurisdiction Outstanding Debt County of Tulare of Tulare
Special Districts $ 56,334 100% $ 56,334
School Districts 125,842 100% 125,842
County of Tulare 159,919 * 100% 159,919
Total $ 342,095 $ 342,095
* Outstanding debt for the County of Tulare includes all Certificates of Participation, Leases, Loans, and Bonds for both gt

and business-type activities for the County and blended component units.
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County of Tulare

Table 10

Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Fiscal Year Population (1) Median Age (1)(3) Unemployment Rate (2)

1994-95 352,100 20.0 16.6%
1995-96 363,200 20.0 16.2
1996-97 354,400 29.0 15.7
1997-98 360,400 Unavailable 15.6
1998-99 363,300 Unavailable 15.2
1999-00 368,021 292 134
2000-01 373,100 Unavailable 14.0
2001-02 379,200 Unavailable 14.0
2002-03 386,200 Unavailable 136
2003-04 396,800 Unavailable 14.5

(1) Source: California Department of Finance, Demographic Research Unit; Census every 10 years.

(2) Source: State Department of Employment Development
(3) Median age is the age at which there are as many residents older as there are younger.
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i Table 11
. County of Tulare
Property Value and Construction
Last Ten Fiscal Years

| {J inth

l

j Commercial Construction (1) Residential Construction (1)

| Fiscal Year N“'"bggfrf‘%‘"‘”"g Value N‘""b;;fr:'%‘"di"g Value hicrotd r?z‘;eﬂy
1994-95 345 $16,549 1,318 $35,880 $11,914,649
1995-96 288 11,366 1,714 39,172 12,425,109
1996-97 316 10,225 1,663 34,246 12,719,639
1997-98 292 71,491 1,678 42,864 13,220,599
1998-99 349 33,619 1,656 42,690 13,646,997

i 1999-00 533 27,850 1671 45,950 14,154,136

‘ 2000-01 416 26,890 1,756 45,268 14,731,050

i 2001-02 407 18,479 1,662 59,222 15,232,365

\ 2002-03 399 23,769 1,685 66,454 16,004,259
2003-04 323 25,083 1,704 72,436 16,984,360

Source: (1) Planning and Development Department
(2) Table 6
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Table 12

County of Tulare
Principal Taxpayers
June 30, 2004
p in
Percentage of
Name of Taxpayer Type of 2003"04 Assessed Tot‘al Assessed
Land O’ Lakes, Inc. Food Processor $257,826 1.43%
Southern California Edison Company Utility 215,532 1.20
Kraft Foods Inc. Food Processor 101,063 0.56
SBC California Utility 86,716 0.48
Southern California Gas Company Utility 68,236 0.38
Wal Mart Stores, Inc. Distribution/Retail 92,335 0.51
California Milk Producers Food Processor 64,516 0.36
Recot, Inc Food Processor 63,823 0.35
Best Buy Stores, LP Distribution 56,483 0.31
Ruiz Foods Products, Inc. Food Processor 42,211 0.23
Total $1,048,741 5.81%

Total Assessed Value - $18,035,792
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Form of Government

Area
Miles of Roads
Number of Street Lights

Fire Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of Firefighter and Officers
(Exclusive of Volunteer Firefighters)
Number of Volunteer Firefighters

Sheriff Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of Sworn Deputies & Officers
Number of Non-sworn Deputies & Officers

Solid Waste:
Landfill Sites
Transfer Stations

Building Permits Issued

Culture and Recreation:
Number of Parks
Lake Success
Lake Kaweah
Number of Libraries
Number of Bookmobiles
Number of Volumes
County Grounds
County Museum

Employees

County of Tulare

Miscellaneous Statistics

June 30, 2004

General Law County - Board of Supervisors

4,839 Square Miles
3,072
1,295

27
7

425

4
448
184

7
7
2,163

10  Totaling 684.5 Acres
82,000 Acre Feet
143,000  Acre Feet
15
2
366,018
2,200,000 Square Feet
25,919 Square Feet

4,357
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Table 14
County of Tulare
y of Financing i
' By Fund and Function
For Fiscal Years 2002-03, 2003-04, 2004-05
(amounts expressed in thousands)

| Actual Actual Budgeted Actual Actual Budgeted

| and Transfers and Transfers and Transfers and Transfers and Transfers and Transfers

f‘ 2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005

Summary by fund Summary by function

General $ 442770 $ 443785 $ 480475 General government $ 21,906 $ 18,578 $ 13,309
Indigent Health 1,173 785 1,126 Public protection 123,408 139,147 154,545
Library 2,569 2519 3,596 Public ways and facilities 17,958 18,764 25,881
Fish and Game 3 6 6 Health and sanitation 86,567 86,165 153,610
Aviation 95 103 627 Public assistance 201,119 201,563 235,589
Structural Fire 10,233 11,423 10,662 Education 3,200 3,370 4,574
Roads 20,518 19,518 26,965 Culture and Recreation 1,759 1,831 1,726
Workforce Investment Act 21,123 14,523 21,651 Debt service 8,575 8,455 16,259

i Child Support Services - 16,733 17,008 Capital outlay 6,191 3,947 17,154
Realignment 43,190 48,835 46,567 Transfers out 93,271 99,236 17,647

I Tobacco Settiement Revenue 4,527 4,027 4,525

“ Debt service 16,566 16,351 16,259

| Capital Projects 1,187 2,448 10,827

i Total by fund $ 563,954 $ 581,056 $ 640,294 Total by function $ 563,954 $ 581,056 $ 640,294

Actual amounts from CAFR basic financial statements for governmental fund types not including component units.
Adopted budget amounts from the BOS Adopted Budget for governmental fund types not including component units.
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Insurance Policies in Force During Fiscal Ye

COUNTY OF TULARE

(amounts expressed in whole dollars)

Ended June 30, 2004

Table 15

Policy Period Premium
Company Policy # From To Limits Deductible Costs Coverage Fund
Coverage provides statutory Workers Compensation
National Union Fire Statutory, including defense Insurance. The policy indemnifies the County for
employees injured while performing their job duties.
Insuranz:l g;:mpany WC4552278 7/1/2003 | 6/30/2004 for Seri:: o:‘r;d Willful NONE § 10,907,415 Payments are made for medical expenses, temporary and 061
g permanent disability, and rehabilitation costs are paid
through the coverage with AIG.
. $15,000,000 per $ 1,000,000 per Excess Liability Coverage applies above the County's SI-
CSAC/EIA EIAQ1GL2-12 | 7/1/2003 | 6/30/2004 occurrence rrence $ 27,196 Program for liability claims of third parties. 062
The Seif Insured Program provides for the payment of
$250,000 per occurrence liability claims filed against the County for bodily injury,
SIR. GL | provides property damage resulting from automobile liability, general
Tulare County Self Insured 7/1/2003 | 6/30/2004 $750,000 and GL Il NONE $ 580,131 liability, personal injury, and other claims seeking money 062
provides $10 million per damages. Claims are administered by a Third Party
occurance. Administrator. Payments include claim settlements and
legal and adjusting expenses.
$10,000,000 Per
Occurrence Liability.
National Union Fire Passenger Liability -~ T
nsurance Company | AP3226733.08 | 71112003 | 602004 | " s1000000per [ S 1LY L gq.14s] Aviatien Liabih ane rificoreiage for County owned | ogp
(AG) occurrence $1,000,000 g " o
per passenger. Hull
$433,000 Stated Value,
Coverage applies to Real and Personal Property of the|
County. Included within the coverage are first party
automobile damages. Coverage afforded is All Risk for|
CSAC/ EIA EIA PPRO1-04 | 3/31/2003 | 3/31/2004 Per Schedule $ 10,000.00f $ 208,574 losses resulting form fire, windstorm, earthquake, with 063
limitations, vandalism, and other causes of loss to real
and personal property owned or leased by the County.
Coverage applies to stationary machinery, turbines,
CSAC/ EIA BM 1077609089 | 3/31/2003 | 3/31/2004 Per schedule $ 10,000 | $ 208,574 generators, etc. owned or leased by the County. 063
$10,000,000 with a Sub
limit of $5,000 for Robbery| Coverage applies to losses from employee dishonesty,
and Safe Burglary applies forgery, theft, robbery and safe burglary, disappearance
CSAC/ EIA 2809838 3/31/2003 | 3/31/2004 to precious metals, $ 25,000] $ 11,200]  and destruction of money and securities. A separate policy | 063
precious and semi- is provided by CSAC/EIA for the coverage and carries a
precious stones, peari $10,000 Self Insured retention.
Jand firs with no deductible.|
Coverage applies to claims resulting form medical
$ 10,000,000 per| malpractice allegations against County employed or
CSAC/ EIA 654745 10/1/2003 | 10/1/2004 $10,000 per Event. Event $ 180,176 contracted doctors, physician assistants, nurses and other 064
medical professionals.




